
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 1 


THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY & 
THE COMMUNITY CONCEPTS GROUP 
 


To:  Board of Directors, Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority  
 


From:  Mark Hendrickson, Susan Leigh and Priscilla Howard, Financial Advisors 
 


Subject:  August 17, 2017 JHFA Meeting 
 


Date:  August 8, 2017 


 
I. 2017 Bond Allocation—Action 
 
1. The 2017 allocation is $45,010,604, an increase of $917,642 (2.1%) over 2016: 


 


Year Single Family 
Amount 


Multifamily 
Amount 


Unallocated Expiration 


2017 $   45,010,604  $4,989,396 *1 November 28, 2017 


2016  $119,900,000  December 30, 2019 


2015 $   80,250,000   December 31, 2018 


TOTAL $125,260,604 $119,900,000 $4,989,396  


*1 Pending request to DBF 
 


2. Recommendation: None. 
 


 
II. Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding (Preference)—Action  


 
1. Some developers attacked the local preference system (known as “Local Government Area of 


Opportunity Funding”), which has been so successfully implemented in Jacksonville. They 
urged FHFC to return to a lottery system. Chairman Gulliford wrote a letter to FHFC urging 
them to continue the local preference. FHFC has agreed to keep the preference system for 
the upcoming 9% Housing Credit RFA 2017-113. 
 


2. An applicant that receives “Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding” receives 10 
points, while the smaller local government contribution only receives 5 points.  A development 
receiving these points should be the “winner”, if the remainder of the application is complete. 
Each large county should receive one deal. In addition to the additional points, the applicant 
receiving the LGAOF automatically receives the maximum score for “proximity” to services 
and is not penalized if within the FHFC “death penalty” distance from other developments 
under construction or built and not yet stabilized. 
 


3. To exercise the right to select a development for preference in the 9% Housing Credit 
competition, a local government has to provide a larger local contribution. This contribution is 
a direct dollar (not NPV) calculation; therefore, the loan to the development would be in the 
amount shown below, based upon building type. From RFA 2016-113 (likely to be the level of 
funding required this year : 


 







 


 2 


Minimum Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding Amounts  


Building Type*  Total Amount of 
Loan(s)/Grant(s)  


Garden-Wood (NC)  $458,250  
Garden-Concrete (NC)  $551,000  
Mid-Rise-Wood (NC)  $551,000  
Mid-Rise-Concrete (NC)  $607,500  
High-Rise (NC)  $739,500  
Garden (Rehab)  $385,250  
Non-Garden (Rehab)  $542,750  


* For purposes of this provision (i) Concrete refers to a “Yes” answer to question 5.c.(3) of Exhibit A; (ii) NC 
includes Development Categories of New Construction, Redevelopment and Acquisition and 
Redevelopment and Rehab includes Development Categories of Rehabilitation and Acquisition and 
Rehabilitation, as selected by the Applicant at question 5.c.(1) of Exhibit A; and (iii) Garden includes all 
Development Types other than Mid-Rise and High-Rise; Non-Garden includes Development Types of Mid-
Rise with Elevator (4 stories, 5 stories, or 6 stories) and High-Rise (7 or more stories); Mid-Rise includes 
Development Types of Mid-Rise with Elevator (4 stories, 5 stories, or 6 stories); and High-Rise includes 
Development Type of High Rise (7 or more stories), as selected by the Applicant at question 5.d. of Exhibit 
A. In the case of mixed-type Developments, the Applicant should use the Building Type that will comprise 
the majority of the units in the Development. 


 
4. RFA 2017-113 has an application deadline of December 13, 2017. In order to select a 


development within that timeframe, JHFA would need to select a development at the 
November 29 meeting. To have adequate time to analyze applications prior to that meeting, 
the application due date is suggested as November 8. 
 


5. All JHFA loans must meet certain threshold criteria detailed in the City Ordinance, including  


 Project must be located within Duval County, Florida; 


 Applicant must provide evidence of ownership or other legal control of the project site 
(e.g., a contract or option to purchase the project site); 


 Applicant must provide a set-aside of rental units equal to or greater than the standards for 
low income Housing Tax Credits or applicable FHFC Program, as the case may be; and, 


 Project must have evidence of land use and zoning authorizing the use of the property for 
multi-family residential uses. 


 
6. The following selection criteria are in the Ordinance: 


 Project feasibility as determined by: 
 Applicant’s development and construction experience; 
 Applicant’s management experience; and 
 Financial feasibility to complete and operate the project (including, but not limited to, 


cost estimates, cash flows, debt service, coverage ratios, the percentage of public 
monies requested compared to project cost; leveraging) 


 Applicant’s performance and/or compliance (including any prior defaults) of any prior loans 
or contracts with the JHFA or the City; 


 The extent to which social services and assistance is offered to occupants (including, but 
not limited to, job training, computer training, home purchase assistance, health-related 
support); 


 The extent to which there is temporary (for any rehabilitation projects) or permanent 
displacement of existing tenants (then in which event either shall be scored as a negative 
factor); and, 


 The following shall receive emphasis in scoring:  







 


 3 


 Existing projects with either expiring Section 8 rental assistance contracts, or the 
preservation of projects that have expiring affordable housing land use restrictions 


 
7. JHFA added the following criteria for preference selection last year: 


 Location in the Central Business District  


 FHFC category of “Family” demographic 


 Maximum Economic Impact 


 Developments which provide a lift to the neighborhood, and could lead to additional 
revitalization and/or neighborhood improvement 


 Projects that result in the adaptive reuse or redevelopment of existing structures or 
properties 


 Proximity to public transportation 


 Leveraging of JHFA funds with other City resources that could be used to meet the FHFC 
required contribution level, and leveraging of JHFA funds with other funds to achieve 
greater impact on the community/neighborhood 


 Ability to meet FHFC requirements for the contribution to be a part of permanent financing 
with minimum loan term. 


 
8. The main criteria that should be examined for possible change this year is the geographic 


area for the preference. The CBD was used the past two years, with both developments 
selected in the LaVilla area. Additionally, a factor used by another HFA (Hillsborough) in its 
preference selection was the willingness of the applicant to agree to a longer term of 
affordability than the 50 year level required by FHFC (they selected a deal that agreed to 
perpetuity). 
 


9. JHFA also needs to have a backup application submitted to FHFC, in case the application 
selected for the preference fails threshold through applicant error. The NOFA needs to be 
clear that JHFA may select a backup application to receive the 5-point local government 
contribution from those that apply for the 10-point preference funding. 
 


10. Recommendations. 


 Authorize publication of an Area of Opportunity Funding NOFA for applicant seeking 
Housing Credits  under FHFC RFA 2017-113, with a due date of November 8 


 NOFA to make clear that JHFA may select a backup application from those applying under 
this NOFA to receive the 5-point local government contribution (historically, NPV of 
$75,000, which translates into a $115,000/20 year/0% loan). 


 Determine Selection Criteria for the preference. 
 


III. Local Government Contribution—Minimum Required in Conjunction with SAIL or 
Housing Credits—Action  
 


1. FHFC requires a smaller level of local government contribution to be provided to all SAIL 
applicants and Housing Credit applicants not awarded the larger Local Government Area of 
Opportunity Funding (preference). Historically, the NPV of the contribution must equal or 
exceed $75,000, which requires a $115,000/20 year/0% loan. 


 
2. RFA 2017-108 has an application deadline of October 5. In order to provide local contributions 


to multiple developments (no Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding system for 
SAIL), JHFA would need to act at the September 20 meeting. To have adequate time to 
analyze applications prior to that meeting, the application due date is suggested as 
September 11. 







 


 4 


3. Historically, JHFA has utilized the selection criteria established by City Ordinance, with a 
preference for applicants using JHFA bonds (providing contribution commitments to all 
applicants that meet threshold and who are using JHFA bond financing). 


 
4. When JHFA selects an applicant to receive the preference funding for Housing Credits, there 


is still a need to have a backup application submitted to FHFC (in case the applicant receiving 
the preference fails threshold due to applicant error). Ideally, the backup would be selected 
from those applying under the preference NOFA. However, it is possible (as was the case last 
year), that none of those applications would have passed FHFC threshold without the 
preference designation (proximity to other developments being built was the problem last 
year). 


 
5. Recommendations: 


 Authorize publication of a Local Government Contribution NOFA for applicants seeking 
SAIL funding under FHFC RFA 2017-108, with a due date of September 11 


 In the same NOFA, for applicants seeking Housing Credits under RFA 2017-113, establish 
a due date of November 8. 


 Determine Selection Criteria for loan commitments 
 
 


IV. New Rental Financings—Action 
 


1. Oakwood Villa closed June 30. 
 


2. A NOFA for 2017 allocation was published, with an application due date of January 6. No 
applications were received. The NOFA is now “open” to applications on a first-received first-
evaluated basis.  


 
3. As applications are received, there is often a need to quickly request bond allocation—which 


cannot take place without TEFRA approval. The TEFRA approval process can be lengthy 
because it involves coordination with City Council agenda deadlines and procedures. Waiting 
to hold TEFRA hearings until after the JHFA induces a deal can create timing issues for some 
non-controversial transactions. The HFA of Hillsborough County has a standing policy to allow 
staff and counsel to publish TEFRA notices and hold TEFRA hearings—knowing that the 
Board of Directors can always end the process by failing to induce the project. Bond counsel 
recommends that the JHFA adopt a similar standing policy. 


 
4. Millennia Housing Development is acquiring the Global Ministries Foundation portfolio 


(including Eureka Gardens and other properties in Jacksonville—list below). They have 
submitted four applications for bond financing, for a total of $76.02 million.  


 
5. The four applications involve both phases of Eureka Gardens and three other properties. Two 


additional properties that were part of the portfolio (Market Street—17 units, and Springfield 
Residential—51 units, were deemed to be in such condition that refinancing/rehabilitation is 
not feasible). They will still be purchased, with the goal to receive HUD approval to transfer 
the Project Based Section 8 contracts to other properties to be acquired by Millennia outside 
of this financing, and then to move the residents to the other properties. 


 
 
 
 







 


 5 


Current Name Eureka Gardens 
I & Ii 


Moncrief Village  Southside 
Apartments  


Washington Heights 


New Name Valencia Way Estuary Estates Oyster Pointe Charlesfort Commons 


Owner Entity*  Valencia Way FL 
TC, LP 


Estuary Estates FL 
TC, LP  


Oyster Pointe FL 
TC, LP  


Charlesfort Commons 
FL TC, LP 


Developer/Location Millennia Housing 
Development 


Cleveland, OH 


Millennia Housing 
Development 


Cleveland, OH 


Millennia Housing 
Development 


Cleveland, OH 


Millennia Housing 
Development 


Cleveland, OH 


Type Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Street Address 1214 Labelle 
Street 


1650 Moncrief 
Village North 


2414 Westmont 
Street 


4229 Moncrief Road 
W 


City Council District Garrett Dennis Katrina Brown Lori Boyer Reginald Brown 


Units 400 94 74 200 


Bedrooms 804 178 148 504 


Square Feet 337,932 53,720 58,238 179,848 


# of Buildings  38 26 12 23 


# of Stories  2 1 & 2 2 2 


Acres 23.75 7.12 2.84 14.61 


Bond Request $38,780,000 
$96,950/unit 


$9,190,000 
$97,766/unit 


$7,160,000 
$96,757/unit  


$20,890,000 
$104,450/unit 


Total Cost $64,042,483 $14,327,577 $12,440,322 $34,755,018 


Cost Per Unit $160,106 $152,421 168,112 $173,775 


Land Cost $2,600,000 
$6,500/unit 


$600,000 
$6,373/unit 


$470,000 
$6,351/unit 


$1,600,000 
$8,000/unit 


Acquisition of Building Cost $23,400,000 
$58,500/unit 


$5,400,000 
$57,447/unit 


$4,230,000 
$57,162/unit 


$14,400,000 
$72,000/unit 


Hard Rehabilitation Cost $21,725,475 
$64.29/Sq. Ft. 
$54,314/unit 


$4,186,400  
$77.93/Sq. Ft. 
$44,536/unit 


$4,118,000 
$70.71/Sq. Ft.  
$55,649/unit 


$10,196,161 
$56.60/Sq. Ft. 
$50,981/unit 


General Contractor NEI NEI NEI NEI 


Credit Enhancement     


Set-Aside Period 50 years 50 years 50 years 50 years 


Set-Aside Levels 100%<60% AMI 100%<60% AMI 100%<60% AMI 100%<60% AMI 


  
6. Recommendations: :  


 Adopt policy permitting bond counsel and staff to publish TEFRA notices and hold TEFRA 
hearings prior to Board action on an application for multi-family bond financing, and 
  


 For Valencia Way, Estuary Gardens, Oyster Pointe, and Charlesfort Commons, approve 
Inducement Resolution prepared by bond counsel, subject to all conditions in the JHFA 
MF Handbook and the recommendations included in the full FA analysis of these 
applications (part of the Board Packet). 


 
 


V. 2013 Single Family Loan Program—Informational 
 


1. The current program guidelines: 


 1st mortgage: 4.00%, 1% origination fee, FHA, VA, RD & Freddie Mac loans 


 First time homebuyers. 


 Income and Sales Price limits identical to bond issue. 


 Minimum credit score of 640 







 


 6 


 Interest rate set by the HFA of Hillsborough County, with rate set at level that is anticipated 


to generate a premium when sold. 


 Loans purchased by the master servicer (US Bank) and converted into MBS. 


 MBS are purchased by the HFA’s, with each HFA funding their pro rata share of the cost. 


 MBS are sold, with each HFA keeping its pro rata share of any net premium or loss 


realized from the sale of the MBS. 


 Down payment assistance: $15,000 second mortgage, due on sale of property, or maturity 
of first mortgage    


 Mortgage Credit Certificates providing homebuyers a credit in the amount of 50% of 
mortgage interest paid annually (up to a $2,000 annually). 
 


2. DPA: $88,796 was received from FHFC. The JHFA has funded another $681,010. The JHFA 


set the DPA amount at $15,000 in August 2016. Additionally, $360,000 of SHIP is being 


allocated by the City for use as DPA by the JHFA.  


 


3. FHFC DPA  and FHLB Atlanta Program:  


 


 The Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta launched a $3 million program which will fund $1 


of DPA for every $2 funded by the HFA. The FHLB loan is subordinate and forgivable. 


However, the lender must be a member of FHLB Atlanta. To date, this program has not 


produced loans. 


 The FHFC DPA Program is now available (August7). It provides $15,000 (forgivable loan).  


 


4. Available DPA Funds: $850,000 total: 


 $250,000 authorized by the City Council 


 At the May 2015 meeting, the Board (using the power granted under the new legislation) 


increased the amount of available DPA funds by $200,000. 


 In June 2015, the Board authorized the use of an additional $400,000 


 


5. Rate Change: The interest rate was increased from 3.875% to 4.00% in August 2017. 


 
6. Program Demographics: 


Sales Price/      
# Loans 


Loan 
Amount 
 


Borrower 
Income 


Borrower 
Age/ 
Gender 


Borrower 
Family 
Size 


 


Housing Type Borrower 
Ethnicity 


MCC 
Amount 


$118,230 
115 loans 
+10 loans 
 


$113,451 
 
 


$41,939 
 
 


35.0 
 
44% 
female 


2.3 
 
 


SF Detached 87%  
Condo:            0%            
Townhouse:  13% 
 
Existing:        94% 
New:               6% 


Black:      26% 
White:      39% 
Hispanic: 17% 
Mixed:       0% 
Asian:      13% 
Other:        4% 


$4,920,548 
$54,672.75 
avg. 
90 buyers 


 


7. Lender Originations: SWBC (59), Academy (24), DHI (4), Fairway (16), Prime (7), Network 


Funding (4), and Open (1). 


 







 


 7 


8. MCC’s: The HFA converted $120 million of bond authority into $30 million of MCC’s. Tranche 


1 ($5.25 million) expired at the end of 2015 with $1,109,274 not utilized. Tranche 2 ($10.0 


million) expired at the end of 2016, with $9,668,903 not utilized. Tranche 3 ($14.75 million) 


expires at the end of 2018. The average JHFA borrower uses $54,673 of MCC’s.  


 


9. MCC Program: What Does it Mean to Home Buyer: With the HFA’s average loan of 


$105,000 and a 3.875%/30 year mortgage, interest payments in Year 1 = $4.035. With the 


50% MCC rate that the HFA has chosen, the homebuyer would be able to claim a tax 


credit of the full $2,000 per year maximum allowed by federal law (slightly declining as 


more of monthly payment is principal) until the home buyers sells or moves from the property. 


The $2,000 of tax savings lowers the “functional” mortgage rate for the program from 3.875% 


to less than 1%. 


 
10. MBS Sales: The HFA has executed 48 sales, with net revenues of $342,748 (net meaning 


after payments to RBC and counsel) coming to JHFA.    


 
11. Hedges & Exposure: Hillsborough County has eight hedges totaling $8.5 million in place. 


With full delivery, the projected net revenues are estimated at 184,410 (shared pro rata with 


counties based upon originations). The unhedged pipeline as of August 4 is $520,588 


(changes daily). 


 
12. Size of Program: The initial legislation wherein City Council authorized the program limited it 


to no more than $1.5 million of loans in pipeline at any time. In June, the Board changed the 


authorization to $1.5 million of unhedged loans. Loans originated or in progress are $11.785 


million. 


 
13. Recommendation: None. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 8 


VI. Update on Existing Rental Properties—Informational 
 
1. JHFA marketed its bonds, JHFA loans, and JHFA local government contributions to 


developers. As a result, the following has been accomplished in the last three years: 
: 
Development Location Building 


Type 
Demographic 


Units  TDC JHFA Loan 


Peyton Ridge 1800 Corporate 
Square Blvd 


3-Story Elevator 
NC 
Elderly 


   120 $16,894,456 $115,000 


Caroline Oaks North Main, east 
side just south of E. 
43


rd
 Street 


3-Story Elevator 
NC 
Elderly 


     82 $14,146,603 $5.6 million bonds 
$2.2 million JHFA loan 


Cathedral Terrace 701 N. Ocean St. High Rise 
Rehab 
Elderly 


   240 $25,604,057 $12.5 million bonds 
$1.0 million JHFA loan 


Mt. Carmel 
Gardens 


5746 Mt. Carmel 
Terrace 


High Rise 
Rehab 
Elderly 


   207 $21,631,853 $9.75 million bonds 


Mary Eaves  East of intersection 
of Myrtle Ave. N. & 
West 16


th
 St. 


Mid-Rise 
NC 
Elderly 


     80 $13,325,568 $300,000 


Lofts at LaVilla 906 West Bay 
Street 


Mid-Rise 
NC 
Family 


   130 $23,388,174 $265,000 


Lofts at LaVilla on 
Monroe 


1000 West Monroe 
Street 


Mid-Rise 
NC 
Family 


   108 $20,962,615 $303,750 


Houston Street 
Manor 


615 Houston Street  Mid-Rise 
NC 
Elderly 


     72 $21,185,213 $115,000 


Timberwood 
Trace 


12250 Atlantic 
Boulevard 
 


Garden 
Rehab 
Family 


   224 $31,238,140 $16.0 million bonds 


Oakwood Villa 8201 Kona Avenue Garden 
Rehab 
Family 


   200 $23,092,183 $12.7 million bonds 


TOTAL  Garden 
Rehab 
Family 


1,463 $211,768,862 $56.55 million bonds 
$4.299 million JHFA loans 


 
2. Occupancy: The current portfolio occupancy using a weighted average is 96.8% (+0.9%). 


 
3. Recommendation: None. 


 







 


 9 


 
 
 


VII. 2018 Legislative Update—Action  
 
1. For the 2017 Legislative Session, JHFA contributed $15,000 towards the Sadowski Education 


Effort (SEE) 
 


2. Without SEE, SHIP funding would be severely reduced or eliminated. 
 


3. Jacksonville will received $3,946,988 of SHIP funds for FY 17-18. This translates into a 263-1 
return on investment of JHFA’s $15,000. 


 
4. The SEE budget for 2018 is $214,000. The HFA of Hillsborough County voted this month to 


increase their SEE contribution to $20,000, and challenge other large county HFA’s to make 
the same commitment. 


 


5. Recommendation: Direct staff to include authorization to pay a SEE contribution in October 
2017, and determine the funding level for that payment. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Portfolio Occupancy 








 


1 


 


Applications Due: November 8, 2017  
for 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA OF OPPORTUNITY FUNDING REQUESTS 
In Conjunction with FHFC RFA 2017-113  


 
JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 


 
NOTICE OF FUND AVAILABILITY & 


REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS 
 


 
The Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority (the "Authority") announces the availability of funds and is 
requesting applications for the consideration of providing local government support for qualified 
multifamily housing developments which meet the goals of the Authority and comply with applicable 
federal and state law.  The Authority has adopted the following guidelines to set forth the general 
requirements and procedures that apply to the financing of multifamily housing developments. The 
Authority may waive specific provisions of these guidelines where good cause is shown and adequate 
supporting documentation is provided.  Any waiver is at the sole discretion of the Authority, and may 
require approval by the Jacksonville City Council.  In addition, these guidelines may be amended, 
revised, repealed or otherwise altered by the Authority with or without notice.  The Authority 
specifically welcomes requests for proposed alternative resident programs or development/unit 
features. 
 
All applications submitted will be reviewed by the Authority’s Financial Advisor, who will make 
recommendations to the Board.  The Board will decide whether or not to authorize commitment letters 
and loans providing Local Government Area of Opporrtunity Funding for developments seeking FHFC 
Housing Credits in conjunction with FHFC RFA 2017-113 and/or loans providing Local Government 
Contributions in conjunction with FHFC RFA 2017-113.  Submission of an application does not entitle the 
Applicant to financing, even if sufficient funds remain.   
 
The Authority will not consider issuing commitment letters to provide financing for any development 
unless the applicant has satisfied the general requirements set forth in these guidelines, submits a 
timely, complete, and acceptable application and complies with all of the procedures and requirements 
contained within the Authority’s application procedures and program guidelines. Copies of the 
Application are available at the Authority’s website:  
 
http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-
programs.aspx 


 
The Authority reserves the right to impose additional requirements on any particular development.  
Compliance with these guidelines does not and shall not create any right by an applicant to a 
commitment or assurance that the Authority will provide the requested financing.   
 
The Authority provides local government support to assist in the construction, rehabilitation and 
permanent financing of multifamily housing developments.  The estimated amount of funds available 
for local government support is approximately $1,500,000. Up to this amount can be used for multi-
family developments seeking Housing Credits from FHFC pursuant to FHFC RFA 2017-113, and Local 
Government Area of Opportunity Funding from JHFA.  



http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-programs.aspx

http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-programs.aspx





 


2 


 


The maximum amount of the Local Government Support loans funded pursuant to this NOFA is the 
amount that will allow ana Applicant to receive the maximum points for the Local Government Area 
of Opportunity Funding. One loan made in conjunction with FHFC RFA 2017-113 will be in the dollar 
amount necessary to score the maximum amount of points for the Local Government Area of 
Opportunity Funding, while another loan will be in the dollar amount necessary to score the 
maximum number of points for the Local Government Contribution. 
 
All applications received will compete with each other and be selected by the Authority for the available 
funding.  Applications will be reviewed against the criteria listed below and, if selected, each loan will be 
subject to the minimum loan terms stated below.  
 
Applications related to FHFC RFA 2017-113 or any other FHFC RFA are due no later than 5:00 PM, 
Eastern Standard Time, November 8, 2016. The application cycle will be processed according to the 
Authority’s guidelines (which guidelines provide, however, that any remaining allocation available after 
the application cycle may be made available to applicants on a first-come, first-served basis). For more 
information, contact Mark Hendrickson. 
 
Applicants must submit an original and a total of two (2) copies to the Authority as follows:  
 
An original, one (1) hard copy, and a PDF of the entire application, and a $5,000 application fee (check 
to JHFA) to: 
 Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority 
 Laura Stagner, Director of Finance 
 214 North Hogan Street, 3rd Floor 
 Jacksonville, FL 32202 
 PDF to be emailed to lstagner@coj.net 
One (1) hard copy and a PDF of the entire application, and $2,500 review fee (check made out to The 
Hendrickson Company) to: 
 Mark Hendrickson 
 1404 Alban Avenue 
 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
 Contact: Mark Hendrickson, 850.671.5601 mark@thehendricksoncompany.com  


 
GUIDELINES 


1.    PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA 


 Project must be located within Duval County, Florida; 


 Applicant must provide evidence of ownership or other legal control of the project site (e.g., a 
contract or option to purchase the project site); 


 Applicant must provide a set-aside of rental units equal to or greater than the standards for low 
income Housing Tax Credits or applicable FHFC Program, as the case may be; and, 


 Project must have evidence of land use and zoning authorizing the use of the property for multi-
family residential uses. 


 
2.    PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA 


 Project feasibility as determined by: 
 Applicant’s development and construction experience; 
 Applicant’s management experience; and 
 Financial feasibility to complete and operate the project (including, but not limited to, cost 


estimates, cash flows, debt service, coverage ratios, the percentage of public monies requested 
compared to project cost; leveraging) 



mailto:lstagner@coj.net

mailto:mark@thehendricksoncompany.com





 


3 


 


 Applicant’s performance and/or compliance (including any prior defaults) of any prior loans or 
contracts with the JHFA or the City; 


 The extent to which social services and assistance is offered to occupants (including, but not limited 
to, job training, computer training, home purchase assistance, health-related support); 


 The extent to which there is temporary (for any rehabilitation projects) or permanent displacement 
of existing tenants (then in which event either shall be scored as a negative factor); and, 


 The following shall receive emphasis in scoring:  
 Existing projects with either expiring Section 8 rental assistance contracts, or  
 The preservation of projects that have expiring affordable housing land use restrictions. 


 The JHFA established the following funding priorities for Applicants applying for the Local 
Government Area of Opportunity Funding: 
 Location in XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  
 FHFC category of “Family” demographic 
 Maximum Economic Impact 
 Developments which provide a lift to the neighborhood, and could lead to additional 


revitalization and/or neighborhood improvement 
 Projects that result in the adaptive reuse or redevelopment of existing structures or properties 
 Proximity to public transportation 
 Leveraging of JHFA funds with other City resources that could be used to meet the FHFC 


required contribution level, and leveraging of JHFA funds with other funds to achieve greater 
impact on the community/neighborhood 


 Ability to meet FHFC requirements for the contribution to be a part of permanent financing 
with minimum loan term. 


 Developments which commit to an affordability period beyond the minimum 50 year period 
required by FHFC and JHFA 


 
3.   LOAN TERMS:  
To be determined at time of loan commitment(s). The following will apply to all JFHA loans: 
 


 The following loan terms shall apply: (a) the JHFA may charge interest at a rate it determines 
(including zero percent interest); (b) the term of the loan may vary but shall not exceed forty 
(40) years; and, (c) the JHFA shall provide for the manner of amortization, and payment to the 
JHFA, of principal and interest (including, but not limited to, a balloon payment of the entire 
principal amount of the loan, together with any then accrued and unpaid interest, at maturity or 
sooner in the event of an uncured event of default. The preferred loan amount  and terms for 
loans made in conjunction with FHFC Housing Credit applications other than the Local 
Government Area of Opportunity Funding loan made in conjunction with FHFC RFA 2016-113 
are:  


 $115,000 loan amount 
 20 year term 
 Monthly payment schedule 
 Non-amortizing 
 0% interest 
 Loan due in full in balloon payment at end of 20 year loan period 


 The loan documents shall provide for the standard default provisions; and upon default, the loan 
shall accrue interest at the highest rate then permissible under Florida law from and after an event 
of default that remains uncured. 


 Each loan shall be evidenced by a promissory note in the full-face amount of the Local Government 
Support, and secured in its entirety by a subordinate lien mortgage, and shall include such other 
standard loan documents as necessary to evidence and complete the transaction. 







 


4 


 


 The loan shall not be disbursed until the following minimum due diligence is received and 
satisfactory (however, additional requirements may be necessary for the project):  mortgagee title 
insurance policy (or a marked-down commitment for the same), boundary survey certified to the 
JHFA, environmental site assessments certified to the JHFA, and evidence of concurrency and all 
permits authorizing construction of the project. 


 The loan shall be issued in the name of the JHFA. Such loan shall be reviewed, implemented, and 
administered by the JHFA. 


 
The loan amount for Applicants seeking a Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding loan will 
depend upon development type, and are detailed within FHFC RFA 2017-113. The terms for such loans 
are: 


 Loan Amount to be determined by development type, as detailed in FHFC RFA 2017-113 
 Term of loan to be the minimum required by FHFC RFA 2017-113 or for development financial 


feasibility 
 Monthly payment schedule 
 Amortizing or non-amortizing 
 0% interest possible, but not preferred 
 Loan due in full in balloon payment at end of loan period if not already amortized 


 The loan documents shall provide for the standard default provisions; and upon default, the loan 
shall accrue interest at the highest rate then permissible under Florida law from and after an event 
of default that remains uncured. 


 Each loan shall be evidenced by a promissory note in the full-face amount of the Local Government 
Support, and secured in its entirety by a subordinate lien mortgage, and shall include such other 
standard loan documents as necessary to evidence and complete the transaction. 


 The loan shall not be disbursed until the following minimum due diligence is received and 
satisfactory (however, additional requirements may be necessary for the project):  mortgagee title 
insurance policy (or a marked-down commitment for the same), boundary survey certified to the 
JHFA, environmental site assessments certified to the JHFA, and evidence of concurrency and all 
permits authorizing construction of the project. 


 The loan shall be issued in the name of the JHFA. Such loan shall be reviewed, implemented, and 
administered by the JHFA. 


4.   FEES  
 


 $5,000 Application fee due with original application, check made out to JHFA 


 $2,500 Review fee, due with copies of application, but mailed to and check made out to The 
Hendrickson Company 


 $5,000 Closing Fee, due at loan closing. 
 


5.  DISCLAIMER 
The JHFA is taking no responsibility that FHFC in their initial scoring, or in any scoring revisions that take 
place due to legal disputes between applicants in FHFC RFA 2017-113, or any other FHFC RFA, related to 
the NPV calculation or the calculation for the Area of Opportunity Funding. JHFA is assuming NO 
LIABILITY if FHFC or any judicial or quasi-judicial body comes to a conclusion that the funding levels or 
loan terms do not qualify the Applicant for the Local Government Area of Opportunity or Local 
Government Support points within the FHFC RFA/Application. 
 
If approved for a loan, and with that understanding, if you would like to have a local government 
contribution loan form executed by the City, please fill out the form and submit to both Laura Stagner 
and Mark Hendrickson prior to the submission deadline. 








 


1 


 


 
 
 
 


JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 


Local Government Support Funds  
 


Application 
 
 


THIS APPLICATION IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF APPLICANTS SEEKING LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
AREA OF OPPORTUNITY FUNDING IN CONJUNCTION WITH FHFC HOUSING CREDIT                 


RFA 2017-113  
 
 
 


SUBMIT THE ORIGINAL, ONE COPY AND A PDF OF THE ENTIRE APPLICATION 
 & APPLICATION FEE OF $5,000 (CHECK MADE TO JHFA) TO: 


 
JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 


LAURA STAGNER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
214 N. HOGAN ST., 7TH FLOOR 


lstagner@coj.net 
JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32202 


904.255.8279 
 


SUBMIT ONE (1) COPY AND A PDF OF THE ENTIRE APPLICATION  
 & REVIEW FEE OF $3,000 (CHECK MADE TO THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY) 


 
THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY 


1404 ALBAN AVENUE 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA  32301 


mark@thehendricksoncompany.com 
850.671.5601 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
REVISED  August 17, 2017







 


2 


 


  


GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
NOTE:   Please see The City Council of the City of Jacksonville’s Ordinance  2014-185-E, which 
establishes minimum Project Threshold Criteria, Project Selection Criteria, and Loan Terms, all 
for local government support as set forth in this application.  If any of the four Project 
Threshold Criteria are not met (e.g., Project located in Duval County; Site control; Sufficient 
number of rental units per applicable FHFC program; and Project presently zoned and has 
appropriate land use designation permitting multi-family residential for the proposed Project), 
then the application will not be considered by the JHFA.  If an application is approved, then the 
JHFA will determine the loan terms for the local government support, including the minimum 
requirements set forth in Ordinance 2014-185-E and including any other terms required by the 
JHFA (including, but not limited to, the applicant paying the JHFA’s legal fees and all costs 
related to the local government support loan). 
 
IF ONE OF THE PROPOSED FUNDING SOURCES FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT IS BOND, THE BONDS 
MUST BE ISSUED BY JHFA.  THE DEADLINE TO APPLY FOR JHFA BONDS WILL BE NOTICED IN 
THE NOTICE FOR FUND AVAILABILITY. 
  
Please indicate if Applicant will use these funds in conjunction with (check one) 
  


  FHFC HOUSING CREDIT RFA # 2017-113 
  


 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT LOAN REQUEST: Please provide the details of your 
request for a Local Government Area of Opportunity Loan, including the 
requested loan amount and loan terms, including interest rate, maturity date, 
amortization, and balloon (if any). The maximum amount of the Local 
Government Area of Opportunity Loan is the minimum amount that will allow 
the Applicant to score the maximum number of points under the FHFC’s 
guidelines. This amount varies bases upon construction type, and will be found 
in FHFC RFA 2017-113.  
 
LOAN AMOUNT REQUESTED: _________________________________ 
MATURITY OF LOAN IN YEARS: _________________________________ 
INTEREST RATE:   _________________________________ 
AMORTIZATION:   _________________________________ 
BALLOON, IF ANY:  _________________________________ 
VALUE OF CONTRIBUTION FOR FHFC APPLICATION PURPOSES:  ______________ 
EXPLANATION AND CALCULATION: _________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 







 


3 


 


  


I. DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY AND TIMELINE 
 
A. Provide a short narrative description of the Development, including all amenities, unit features 


and scope of work to be performed.  MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AMENITIES WILL BE INCLUDED IN 
THE LAND USE RESTRICTION AGREEMENT AND/OR THE LOW INCOME HOUSING AGREEMENT, IF 
APPLICABLE.  Also attach as Exhibit 1 a timeline for the completion of the development which 
includes all key dates, including anticipated timing of permits and credit underwriting, bond 
closing date, completion of construction, rent up, and stabilization. 


 
 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


   
B. Attach as Exhibit 2 a narrative description of how this application meets all selection criteria for 


Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding, as detailed in the associated NOFA. 
 
 
C.    Applicant must agree to participate in the Crime Free Multi-Housing Program sponsored by    the 


Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office.  Terms of this program are included as Attachment 1.  Proof of 
participation must be provided to the Authority semi-annually. 


   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


4 


 


  


D.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 


       


Name of Development  


Location of Development, by street address, or if no 
address, by mileage from nearest cross streets. Also, 
attach a map showing the development’s location. The 
Project must be located in Duval County. (PROJECT 
THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 


 


City Council District Number  


Developer/ 
Location (name of controlling company, not of LP or 
LLC). 


 


Contact person for application, including name, email, 
and phone numbers 


 


Development Construction Type 
New Construction or Rehabilitation 


 


Development Demographic 
Family, Elderly, or other 


 


Number of Units, by Bedrooms  


Total Development Cost  


Cost per unit  


Land Cost  


Acquisition of Building Cost if applicable  


Hard Rehab Cost or Construction Cost  


General Contractor   


Set Aside Period (minimum of 50 years)  


Set Aside Levels (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA)  


Current Zoning (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA)  


Evidence of Site Control (PROJECT THRESHOLD 
CRITERIA) 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


5 


 


  


II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 


A. Applicant Name:        
 


Must be a legally formed entity (i.e., limited partnership, corporation, etc.) qualified to do 
business in the State of Florida at the time of submission of Application.   
 


B.  If partnership, name of general partner(s):       


       


If corporation, name and title of executive officer:       


       


Address:       


       


Telephone:        Facsimile:        
 


 


III.    PROPOSED PROJECT FINANCING 


 
A. Proposed Finance Summary: Please provide as Exhibit 3 a permanent loan period detailed sources 


and uses that is in a format acceptable to FHFC as part of the upcoming HC RFA process.   
 
IV. ABILITY TO PROCEED 
 
 Each Application shall be reviewed for feasibility and ability of the Applicant to proceed with 


construction of the Development. 
 
A. Site Control (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 
 
 Site Control must be demonstrated by the APPLICANT.  At a minimum, a Contract for Purchase and 


Sale must be held by the Applicant for the proposed site. The contract may not until expire until 
2018, and the buyer MUST be the Applicant. Indicate which form of site control is provided: 


 
       Contract for Purchase & Sale, and Title Insurance Commitment showing marketable title in the 


name of the Seller 
 
       Recorded Deed, and Title Insurance Policy Showing marketable title in the name of the 


Applicant 
 
       Long-Term Lease:  If site control is demonstrated by long-term lease, a copy of the executed 


lease must be provided.  The lease may be contingent only upon the receipt of Bond 
Financing.  Also, a Title Insurance Commitment showing marketable title in the name of the 
lessee must be included. 


 







 


6 


 


  


 IMPORTANT:  If site control is not held by the Applicant, a fully executed, enforceable contract for 
purchase and sale or assignment of contract must be provided which obligates the seller or 
assignor to transfer the site to the Applicant contingent ONLY upon the award of Financing from the 
Authority or FHFC.  .  Attach Evidence of Site Control as Exhibit 4. 


 
B. Zoning and Land Development Regulations (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 
 
 1. a. Is the site appropriately zoned for the proposed Development:  No         Yes  ___     
 
  b. Indicate zoning designation (s)        
 
  c. Current zoning permits       units per acre, or       for the site (PUD). 
 
  d. Total Number of Units in Development:        
 
  Note:  at a minimum, the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation and associated Local Government 


Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions must permit the proposed Development. ( PROJECT 
THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 


 


 2. New Construction Zoning and Land Development Regulation Development Requirements: 
 


Applicant must provide a letter from the appropriate local government official that the 
Development is consistent with zoning and land development regulations, which verify that the 
site is appropriately zoned and consistent with local land use regulations regarding density and 
intended use.  To meet minimum requirements, attach a letter from the appropriate local 
government official verifying that the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation 
and associated Local Government Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions 
permit the proposed Development. Attach the local government verification letter as Exhibit 5. 


 
 3. Rehabilitation Zoning and Land Development Regulation Development Requirements: 
 


Applicant must provide a letter from the appropriate local government official that the 
Development is consistent with zoning and land development regulations, which verify that the 
site is appropriately zoned and consistent with local land use regulations regarding density and 
intended use.  To meet minimum requirements, attach a letter from the appropriate local 
government official verifying that the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation 
and associated Local Government Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions 
permit the proposed Development. Attach the local government verification letter as Exhibit 5. 
 


 
 
 
 
 


  
 
 
 







 


7 


 


  


V. CERTIFICATION (Original Signatures Required) 
 


The undersigned Applicant certifies that the information in this Application is true, correct and 
authentic. 
 
THE APPLICANT FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ ALL APPLICABLE AUTHORITY RULES 
GOVERNING THE PROGRAM AND ACKNOWLEDGE HAVING READ THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR 
COMPLETING THIS APPLICATION. 
 
THE APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES TO ABIDE BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE APPLICABLE 
FLORIDA STATUTES AND AUTHORITY PROGRAM POLICIES, RULES AND GUIDELINES. 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN 
IS TRUE AND ACCURATE.  THE PERSON EXECUTING THIS DOCUMENT REPRESNTS THAT HE OR 
SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE APPLICANT AND ALL INDIVIDUALS AND ENTITIES NAMED 
HEREIN TO THIS WARRANTY OF TRUTHFULNESS AND COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION. 
 
THE APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE AUTHORITY’S INVITATION TO SUBMIT AN 
APPLICATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COMMITMENT TO FINANCE THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT.  BEFORE THE AUTHORITY CAN CLOSE A LOAN THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
MUST RECEIVE AN ALLOCATION OF HOUSING CREDITS AND APPLICANTS MUST SUCCESSFULLY 
COMPLETE CREDIT UNDERWRITING AND OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY APROVALS FROM THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AUTHORITY COUNSEL, BOND COUNSEL, THE CREDIT UNDERWRITER 
AND CITY COMMISSION AND STAFF. 
 
 
 
    
Applicant                                             Date  Signature of Witness 
 
 
              
Name and Title ((typed or printed)  Name (typed or printed) 
 


 
NOTE:  ORIGINAL APPLICATION MUST CONTAIN AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, OR THE APPLICATION WILL BE 
REJECTED AUTOMATICALLY 







 


8 


 


  


ATTACHMENT 1 







 


9 


 


  


 


 








 


1 


 


Applications Due:  
September 11, 2017 for Loans Made in Conjunction with FHFC RFA 2017-108 
November 8, 2017 for Loans Made in Conjunction with FHFC RFA 2017-113  


or any other FHFC Housing Credit RFA 
 


JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 


NOTICE OF FUND AVAILABILITY & 
REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS 


 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT LOANS 


(1) FOR DEVELOPMENTS APPLYING FOR FHFC SAIL SEEKING THE REQUIRED 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTION & 


(2) FOR DEVELOPMENTS APPLYING FOR FHFC HOUSING CREDITS SEEKING THE 
REQUIRED LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTION 


 
The Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority (the "Authority") announces the availability of funds and is 
requesting applications for the consideration of providing local government support for qualified 
multifamily housing developments which meet the goals of the Authority and comply with applicable 
federal and state law.  The Authority has adopted the following guidelines to set forth the general 
requirements and procedures that apply to the financing of multifamily housing developments. The 
Authority may waive specific provisions of these guidelines where good cause is shown and adequate 
supporting documentation is provided.  Any waiver is at the sole discretion of the Authority, and may 
require approval by the Jacksonville City Council.  In addition, these guidelines may be amended, 
revised, repealed or otherwise altered by the Authority with or without notice.  The Authority 
specifically welcomes requests for proposed alternative resident programs or development/unit 
features. 
 
All applications submitted will be reviewed by the Authority’s Financial Advisor, who will make 
recommendations to the Board.  The Board will decide whether or not to authorize commitment letters 
and loans providing Local Government Support for developments seeking FHFC funding.  Submission of 
an application does not entitle the Applicant to financing, even if sufficient funds remain.   
 
The Authority will not consider issuing commitment letters to provide financing for any development 
unless the applicant has satisfied the general requirements set forth in these guidelines, submits a 
timely, complete, and acceptable application and complies with all of the procedures and requirements 
contained within the Authority’s application procedures and program guidelines. Copies of the 
Application are available at the Authority’s website:  
 
http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-
programs.aspx 


 
The Authority reserves the right to impose additional requirements on any particular development.  
Compliance with these guidelines does not and shall not create any right by an applicant to a 
commitment or assurance that the Authority will provide the requested financing.   
 



http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-programs.aspx

http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-programs.aspx





 


2 


 


The Authority provides local government support to assist in the construction,  rehabilitation and 
permanent financing of multifamily housing developments.  The estimated amount of funds available 
for local government support is approximately $1,500,000. Up to this amount can be used for multi-
family developments seeking SAIL from FHFC pursuant to FHFC RFA 2017-108 and/or seeking Housing 
Credits from FHFC pursuant to FHFC RFA 2017-113, or other FHFC Housing Credit RFA which requires a 
local government contribution.  
 
NOTE: JHFA intends to provide Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding for one Applicant in 
conjunction with FHFC RFA 2017-113. Any Applicant responding to this NOFA, seeking the funding to 
achieve the lower amount of points available for a local government contribution, should be fully 
aware of JHFA’s intent. JHFA also intends to select one Applicant to receive the local government 
contribution, with a full understanding that the Applicant will not be successful within the FHFC 
process unless the Applicant receiving the Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding fails FHFC 
threshold scoring. The Applicant so selected will serve solely as a “backup” application, to insure that 
Jacksonville receives Housing Credits, even if the preferred development is not selected by FHFC. 
 
The maximum amount of the Local Government Support loans funded pursuant to this NOFA is the 
amount that will allow local projects to score the maximum number of points for local government 
contribution (not Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding) under FHFC RFA 2017-108, FHFC 
RFA 2017-113, or other FHFC Housing Credit RFA for which credits are being applied for, Loans will be 
structured to achieve a net present value contribution of the amount necessary to score the maximum 
amount of points.. 
 
All applications received will compete with each other and be selected by the Authority for the available 
funding.  Applications will be reviewed against the criteria listed below and, if selected, each loan will be 
subject to the minimum loan terms stated below.  
 
Applications related to FHFC RFA 2017-108 are due no later than 5:00 PM, Eastern Daylight Time, 
September 11, 2017.  Applications related to FHFC RFA 2017-113 or any other FHFC RFA are due no later 
than 5:00 PM, Eastern Standard Time, November 8, 2016. The application cycle will be processed 
according to the Authority’s guidelines (which guidelines provide, however, that any remaining 
allocation available after the application cycle may be made available to applicants on a first-come, first-
served basis). For more information, contact Mark Hendrickson. 
 
Applicants must submit an original and a total of two (2) copies to the Authority as follows:  
 
An original, one (1) hard copy, and a PDF of the entire application, and a $5,000 application fee (check 
to JHFA) to: 
 Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority 
 Laura Stagner, Director of Finance 
 214 North Hogan Street, 3rd Floor 
 Jacksonville, FL 32202 
 PDF to be emailed to lstagner@coj.net 
One (1) hard copy and a PDF of the entire application, and $2,500 review fee (check made out to The 
Hendrickson Company) to: 
 Mark Hendrickson 
 1404 Alban Avenue 
 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
 Contact: Mark Hendrickson, 850.671.5601 mark@thehendricksoncompany.com  


 



mailto:lstagner@coj.net

mailto:mark@thehendricksoncompany.com





 


3 


 


GUIDELINES 
1.    PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA 


 Project must be located within Duval County, Florida; 


 Applicant must provide evidence of ownership or other legal control of the project site (e.g., a 
contract or option to purchase the project site); 


 Applicant must provide a set-aside of rental units equal to or greater than the standards for low 
income Housing Tax Credits or applicable FHFC Program, as the case may be; and, 


 Project must have evidence of land use and zoning authorizing the use of the property for multi-
family residential uses. 


 
2.    PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA 


 Project feasibility as determined by: 
 Applicant’s development and construction experience; 
 Applicant’s management experience; and 
 Financial feasibility to complete and operate the project (including, but not limited to, cost 


estimates, cash flows, debt service, coverage ratios, the percentage of public monies requested 
compared to project cost; leveraging) 


 Applicant’s performance and/or compliance (including any prior defaults) of any prior loans or 
contracts with the JHFA or the City; 


 The extent to which social services and assistance is offered to occupants (including, but not limited 
to, job training, computer training, home purchase assistance, health-related support); 


 The extent to which there is temporary (for any rehabilitation projects) or permanent displacement 
of existing tenants (then in which event either shall be scored as a negative factor); and, 


 The following shall receive emphasis in scoring:  
 Existing projects with either expiring Section 8 rental assistance contracts, or  
 The preservation of projects that have expiring affordable housing land use restrictions. 


 The JHFA established the following funding priority for Applicants applying for the local 
government contribution in conjunction with a SAIL application: 
 Utilizing JHFA Bonds 


 
3.   LOAN TERMS:  
To be determined at time of loan commitment(s). The following will apply to all JFHA loans: 
 


 The following loan terms shall apply: (a) the JHFA may charge interest at a rate it determines 
(including zero percent interest); (b) the term of the loan may vary but shall not exceed forty 
(40) years; and, (c) the JHFA shall provide for the manner of amortization, and payment to the 
JHFA, of principal and interest (including, but not limited to, a balloon payment of the entire 
principal amount of the loan, together with any then accrued and unpaid interest, at maturity or 
sooner in the event of an uncured event of default. The preferred loan amount  and terms for 
loans made in conjunction with FHFC SAIL applications or Housing Credit applications other than 
the Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding loan made in conjunction with FHFC RFA 
2017-113 are:  


 $115,000 loan amount 
 20 year term 
 Monthly payment schedule 
 Non-amortizing 
 0% interest 
 Loan due in full in balloon payment at end of 20 year loan period 







 


4 


 


 The loan documents shall provide for the standard default provisions; and upon default, the loan 
shall accrue interest at the highest rate then permissible under Florida law from and after an event 
of default that remains uncured. 


 Each loan shall be evidenced by a promissory note in the full-face amount of the Local Government 
Support, and secured in its entirety by a subordinate lien mortgage, and shall include such other 
standard loan documents as necessary to evidence and complete the transaction. 


 The loan shall not be disbursed until the following minimum due diligence is received and 
satisfactory (however, additional requirements may be necessary for the project):  mortgagee title 
insurance policy (or a marked-down commitment for the same), boundary survey certified to the 
JHFA, environmental site assessments certified to the JHFA, and evidence of concurrency and all 
permits authorizing construction of the project. 


 The loan shall be issued in the name of the JHFA. Such loan shall be reviewed, implemented, and 
administered by the JHFA. 


4.   FEES  
 


 $5,000 Application fee due with original application, check made out to JHFA 


 $2,500 Review fee, due with copies of application, but mailed to and check made out to The 
Hendrickson Company 


 $5,000 Closing Fee, due at loan closing. 
 


5.  DISCLAIMER 
The JHFA will determine the NPV of the loan/contribution at the time of the loan commitment. 
 
The JHFA is taking no responsibility that FHFC in their initial scoring, or in any scoring revisions that take 
place due to legal disputes between applicants in FHFC RFA 2017-108, FHFC RFA 2017-113, or any other 
FHFC RFA, will ultimately agree with this calculation. It is our best estimate of the NPV, but we are 
assuming NO LIABILITY if FHFC or any judicial or quasi-judicial body comes to another conclusion. 
 
If approved for a loan, and with that understanding, if you would like to have a local government 
contribution loan form executed by the City, please fill out the form and submit to both Laura Stagner 
and Mark Hendrickson prior to the submission deadline. 
 
If you dispute the NPV calculation, please contact Mark Hendrickson to discuss. 
 








 


1 


 


  
 
 
 


JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 


Local Government Support Funds  
 


Application 
 
 


THIS APPLICATION IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF APPLICANTS SEEKING THE REQUIRED 
MINIMUM LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTION IN CONJUNCTION WITH APPLICATION TO 


FHFC FOR SAIL OR HOUSING CREDITS  
 
 
 


SUBMIT THE ORIGINAL, ONE COPY AND A PDF OF THE ENTIRE APPLICATION 
 & APPLICATION FEE OF $5,000 (CHECK MADE TO JHFA) TO: 


 
JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 


LAURA STAGNER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
214 N. HOGAN ST., 7TH FLOOR 


lstagner@coj.net 
JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32202 


904.255.8279 
 


SUBMIT ONE (1) COPY AND A PDF OF THE ENTIRE APPLICATION  
 & REVIEW FEE OF $3,000 (CHECK MADE TO THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY) 


 
THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY 


1404 ALBAN AVENUE 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA  32301 


mark@thehendricksoncompany.com 
850.671.5601 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
REVISED August 17, 2017







 


2 


 


  


GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
NOTE:   Please see The City Council of the City of Jacksonville’s Ordinance  2014-185-E, which 
establishes minimum Project Threshold Criteria, Project Selection Criteria, and Loan Terms, all 
for local government support as set forth in this application.  If any of the four Project 
Threshold Criteria are not met (e.g., Project located in Duval County; Site control; Sufficient 
number of rental units per applicable FHFC program; and Project presently zoned and has 
appropriate land use designation permitting multi-family residential for the proposed Project), 
then the application will not be considered by the JHFA.  If an application is approved, then the 
JHFA will determine the loan terms for the local government support, including the minimum 
requirements set forth in Ordinance 2014-185-E and including any other terms required by the 
JHFA (including, but not limited to, the applicant paying the JHFA’s legal fees and all costs 
related to the local government support loan). 
 
IF ONE OF THE PROPOSED FUNDING SOURCES FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT IS BONDS, THE 
BONDS MUST BE ISSUED BY JHFA.  THE BOND APPLICATION MUST BE RECEIVED PRIOR TO THE 
SEPTEMBER 2017 JHFA MEETING. 
  
Please indicate if Applicant will use these funds in conjunction with (check one) 
  


  Other FHFC HOUSING CREDIT RFA: RFA ________________________ 


  FHFC HOUSING SAIL RFA # 2017-108 (FHFC DUE DATE 10-5-2017) 
 FHFC HOUSING CREDIT RFA # 2017-111 (FHFC DUE DATE 12-13-2017) 


 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT LOAN REQUEST: Please provide the details of your 
request for a local government contribution, including the requested loan 
amount and loan terms, including interest rate, maturity date, amortization, 
and balloon (if any). The maximum amount of the Local Government Support 
loan for projects funded by FHFC is the minimum amount that will allow local 
projects to score five points under the FHFC’s guidelines. This exact amount will 
be noticed in each FHFC RFA.  
 
LOAN AMOUNT REQUESTED: _________________________________ 
MATURITY OF LOAN IN YEARS: _________________________________ 
INTEREST RATE:   _________________________________ 
AMORTIZATION:   _________________________________ 
BALLOON, IF ANY:  _________________________________ 
VALUE OF CONTRIBUTION FOR FHFC APPLICATION PURPOSES:  ______________ 
EXPLANATION AND CALCULATION:
 ___________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 







 


3 


 


  


 
I. DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY AND TIMELINE 
 
A. Provide a short narrative description of the Development, including all amenities, unit features 


and scope of work to be performed.  MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AMENITIES WILL BE INCLUDED IN 
THE LAND USE RESTRICTION AGREEMENT AND/OR THE LOW INCOME HOUSING AGREEMENT, IF 
APPLICABLE.  Also attach as Exhibit 1 a timeline for the completion of the development which 
includes all key dates, including anticipated timing of permits and credit underwriting, bond 
closing date, completion of construction, rent up, and stabilization. 


 
 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


 ____        


   
B. Applicant must agree to participate in the Crime Free Multi-Housing Program sponsored by    the 


Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office.  Terms of this program are included as Attachment 1.  Proof of 
participation must be provided to the Authority semi-annually. 


   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


4 


 


  


C.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 


       


Name of Development  


Location of Development, by street address, or if no 
address, by mileage from nearest cross streets. Also, 
attach a map showing the development’s location. The 
Project must be located in Duval County. (PROJECT 
THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 


 


City Council District Number  


Developer/ 
Location (name of controlling company, not of LP or 
LLC). 


 


Contact person for application, including name, email, 
and phone numbers 


 


Development Construction Type 
New Construction or Rehabilitation 


 


Development Demographic 
Family, Elderly or Other (identify) 


 


Number of Units, by Bedrooms  


Total Development Cost  


Cost per unit  


Land Cost  


Acquisition of Building Cost if applicable  


Hard Rehab Cost or Construction Cost  


General Contractor   


Set Aside Period  


Set Aside Levels (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA)  


Current Zoning (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA)  


Evidence of Site Control (PROJECT THRESHOLD 
CRITERIA) 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


5 


 


  


 


II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 


A. Applicant Name:        
 


Must be a legally formed entity (i.e., limited partnership, corporation, etc.) qualified to do 
business in the State of Florida at the time of submission of Application.   
 


B.  If partnership, name of general partner(s):       


       


If corporation, name and title of executive officer:       


       


Address:       


       


Telephone:        Facsimile:        
 


 


III.    PROPOSED PROJECT FINANCING 


 
A. Proposed Finance Summary: Please provide a permanent loan period detailed sources and uses that 


is in a format acceptable to FHFC as part of the upcoming SAIL or HC RFA process. Attach as Exhibit 
2.  


 
IV. ABILITY TO PROCEED 
 
 Each Application shall be reviewed for feasibility and ability of the Applicant to proceed with 


construction of the Development. 
 
A. Site Control (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 
 
 Site Control must be demonstrated by the APPLICANT.  At a minimum, a Contract for Purchase and 


Sale must be held by the Applicant for the proposed site.  The contract may not until expire 2018, 
and the remedy for default on the part of the seller must include or be specific performance, and 
the buyer MUST be the Applicant. Indicate which form of site control is provided: 


 
       Contract for Purchase & Sale showing marketable title in the name of the Seller 
 
       Recorded Deed showing marketable title in the name of the Applicant 
 
       Long-Term Lease:  If site control is demonstrated by long-term lease, a copy of the executed 


lease must be provided.  The lease may be contingent only upon the receipt Housing Credits 
and first-mortgage financing. Also, a Title Insurance Commitment showing marketable title 
in the name of the lessee must be included. 


 







 


6 


 


  


 IMPORTANT:  If site control is not held by the Applicant, a fully executed, enforceable contract for 
purchase and sale or assignment of contract must be provided which obligates the seller or 
assignor to transfer the site to the Applicant contingent ONLY upon the award of Financing from the 
Authority or FHFC.  Attach Evidence of Site Control as Exhibit 3. 


 
B. Zoning and Land Development Regulations (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 
 
 1. a. Is the site appropriately zoned for the proposed Development:  No         Yes  ___     
 
  b. Indicate zoning designation (s)        
 
  c. Current zoning permits       units per acre, or       for the site (PUD). 
 
  d. Total Number of Units in Development:        
 
  Note:  at a minimum, the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation and associated Local Government 


Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions must permit the proposed Development. ( PROJECT 
THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 


 


 2. New Construction Zoning and Land Development Regulation Development Requirements: 
 


Applicant must provide a letter from the appropriate local government official that the 
Development is consistent with zoning and land development regulations, which verify that the 
site is appropriately zoned and consistent with local land use regulations regarding density and 
intended use.  To meet minimum requirements, attach a letter from the appropriate local 
government official verifying that the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation 
and associated Local Government Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions 
permit the proposed Development. Attach the local government verification letter as Exhibit 4. 
 


 3. Rehabilitation Zoning and Land Development Regulation Development Requirements: 
 


Applicant must provide a letter from the appropriate local government official that the 
Development is consistent with zoning and land development regulations, which verify that the 
site is appropriately zoned and consistent with local land use regulations regarding density and 
intended use.  To meet minimum requirements, attach a letter from the appropriate local 
government official verifying that the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation 
and associated Local Government Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions 
permit the proposed Development. Attach the local government verification letter as Exhibit 4. 
. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


  
 







 


7 


 


  


V. CERTIFICATION (Original Signatures Required) 
 


The undersigned Applicant certifies that the information in this Application is true, correct and 
authentic. 
 
THE APPLICANT FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ ALL APPLICABLE AUTHORITY RULES 
GOVERNING THE PROGRAM AND ACKNOWLEDGE HAVING READ THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR 
COMPLETING THIS APPLICATION. 
 
THE APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES TO ABIDE BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE APPLICABLE 
FLORIDA STATUTES AND AUTHORITY PROGRAM POLICIES, RULES AND GUIDELINES. 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN 
IS TRUE AND ACCURATE. THE PERSON EXECUTING THIS DOCUMENT REPRESNTS THAT HE OR 
SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE APPLICANT AND ALL INDIVIDUALS AND ENTITIES NAMED 
HEREIN TO THIS WARRANTY OF TRUTHFULNESS AND COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION. 
 
THE APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE AUTHORITY’S INVITATION TO SUBMIT AN 
APPLICATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COMMITMENT TO FINANCE THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT.  BEFORE THE AUTHORITY CAN CLOSE A LOAN THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
MUST RECEIVE AN ALLOCATION OF HOUSING CREDITS OR BONDS/SAIL AND APPLICANT MUST 
SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETE CREDIT UNDERWRITING AND OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY APROVALS 
FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AUTHORITY COUNSEL, BOND COUNSEL, THE CREDIT 
UNDERWRITER AND CITY COMMISSION AND STAFF. 
 
 
 
    
Applicant                                             Date  Signature of Witness 
 
 
              
Name and Title ((typed or printed)  Name (typed or printed) 
 


 
NOTE:  ORIGINAL APPLICATION MUST CONTAIN AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, OR THE APPLICATION WILL BE 
REJECTED AUTOMATICALLY 







 


8 


 


  


ATTACHMENT 1 







 


9 


 


  


 


 








THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
 


 1 


 
MEMORANDUM 


 


To:  Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority Board of Directors 


 


From:  Mark Hendrickson, Financial Advisor  


   


Subject: Analysis of Millennia Portfolio Bond Applications 


 


Date:  August 8, 2017 


 


Attached is an analysis of the Millennia Portfolio bond applications. Several items used in the analysis were 


requested after receipt of the application, and this is part of the normal review process. All additional materials were 


forwarded to Laura Stagner to be made part of the permanent public record. 


 


This is a four development financing involving the acquisition and rehabilitation of properties that were 


owned by the Global Ministries Foundation, including Eureka Gardens. As the new owner (the Millennia 


Companies), development team, and financing structure are common to all four transactions, the analysis 


consolidates information wherever possible. 
 


Analysis of Bond Applications- Millennia Portfolio 
 


I. Summary of Findings 
 
A.  Summary of key criteria: 
 


Question Millennia Portfolio 


Are the developments economically feasible as submitted? Yes 


Are the costs/fees associated with the development 
reasonable and appropriate? 


Yes. Sales price will need 
verification by appraisal 


Is the experience of the development team adequate? Yes 


If feasible, is it ready to proceed to closing in 2017 1st Quarter 2018 


Is the product being proposed adequate in terms of design 
and amenities? 


Rehab appears to be 
adequate. PNA will verify. 


Is the product being proposed adequate in terms of ongoing 
resident services? 


Yes 


Are the income targeting and length of set-aside adequate? Yes 
 


Any special impact on redevelopment? Yes 


Did the responses within the application contain adequate 
responses to important questions, relating to financing and 
other key issues? 


Yes 


Recommend Inducement? Yes 


 


 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
 


 2 


B. Summary of the Proposed Developments 
 


Current Name Eureka 
Gardens I & II 


Market Street  Moncrief 
Village  


Southside 
Apartments  


Springfield 
Residential  


Washington 
Heights 


New Name Valencia Way Sunray Estates Estuary Estates Oyster Pointe Palmetto 
Ledges 


Charlesfort 
Commons 


Owner Entity*  Valencia Way 
FL TC, LP 


Sunray Estates 
FL TC, LP 


Estuary Estates 
FL TC, LP  


Oyster Pointe 
FL TC, LP  


Palmetto 
Ledges FL TC, 


LP  


Charlesfort 
Commons FL 


TC, LP 


Developer/Location Millennia 
Housing 


Development 
Cleveland, OH 


Millennia 
Housing 


Development 
Cleveland, OH 


Millennia 
Housing 


Development 
Cleveland, OH 


Millennia 
Housing 


Development 
Cleveland, OH 


Millennia 
Housing 


Development 
Cleveland, OH 


Millennia 
Housing 


Development 
Cleveland, OH 


Type Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Acquisition & 
Substantial 


Rehabilitation 


Street Address 1214 Labelle 
Street 


1205 N. Market 
Street 


1650 Moncrief 
Village North 


2414 Westmont 
Street 


1411 N. 
Jefferson St.  


4229 Moncrief 
Road W 


City Council 
District 


Garrett Dennis  Katrina Brown Lori Boyer  Reginald 
Brown 


Units 400 17 94 74 51 200 


Bedrooms 804  178 148  504 


Square Feet 337,932  53,720 58,238  179,848 


# of Buildings  38 2 26 12 12 23 


# of Stories  2 2 & 3 1 & 2 2 2 & 3 2 


Acres 23.75 0.41 7.12 2.84 1.43 14.61 


Bond Request $38,780,000 
$96,950/unit 


 $9,190,000 
$97,766/unit 


$7,160,000 
$96,757/unit  


 $20,890,000 
$104,450/unit 


Total Cost $64,042,483  $14,327,577 $12,440,322  $34,755,018 


Cost Per Unit $160,106  $152,421 168,112  $173,775 


Land Cost $2,600,000 
$6,500/unit 


 $600,000 
$6,383/unit 


$470,000 
$6,351/unit 


 $1,600,000 
$8,000/unit 


Acquisition of 
Building Cost 


$23,400,000 
$58,500/unit 


 $5,400,000 
$57,447/unit 


$4,230,000 
$57,162/unit 


 $14,400,000 
$72,000/unit 


Hard Rehabilitation 
Cost 


$21,725,475 
$64.29/Sq. Ft. 
$54,314/unit 


 $4,186,400  
$77.93/Sq. Ft. 
$44,536/unit 


$4,118,000 
$70.71/Sq. Ft.  
$55,649/unit 


 $10,196,161 
$56.60/Sq. Ft. 
$50,981/unit 


General Contractor NEI NEI NEI NEI NEI NEI 


Credit 
Enhancement 


Private 
Placement to 


R4 


 Private 
Placement to 
R4 


Private 
Placement to 
R4 


 Private 
Placement to 


R4 


Set-Aside Period 50 years 50 years 50 years 50 years 50 years 50 years 


Set-Aside Levels 100%<60% 
AMI 


100%<60% 
AMI 


100%<60% 
AMI 


100%<60% 
AMI 


100%<60% 
AMI 


100%<60% 
AMI 


 


The Market Street and Springfield Residential developments were deemed as not feasible for 
rehabilitation by the Applicant. They will still be purchasing the properties, as they are part of the GMF 
portfolio. Millennia will attempt to transfer the existing Section 8 Project Based Assistance to other 
properties that they acquire outside of this transaction, and then relocate the residents to the other 
properties. 
 


 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
 


 3 


C.  Summary of Findings and Recommendations for Millennia Portfolio 
 
1. These properties are in desperate need of significant rehabilitation and new management. The 


proposed financing will provide life and safety repairs, massively upgrade the properties, bring in an 
experienced owner/property manager with a good track-record, and provide a life-changing 
upgrade for the residents of the property. Jacksonville will be well served by the financing. 
 


2. That being said, all rehabilitation deals are limited by the available resources—so that 60 year old 
units will not be as nice as newly constructed ones. However, the hard cost rehabilitation of the 
properties is over $40.2 million, or $52,374 per unit. 


 


3. As important as the rehabilitation, all of these properties have Section 8 project based assistance 
which will be preserved with this financing and rehabilitation. The current owner was on the path to 
HUD revoking the Section 8 contracts—which would have been lost forever. This financing will 
preserve the precious rent subsidy.  


 


4. In credit underwriting, an appraisal will be used to determine the market value (using multiple 
approaches, including income). This will be used to evaluate the sales price of the properties. FHFC 
will have a direct role in this aspect of the analysis as well, as they will make the determination if the 
sales price is reasonable and if all of it can be included in eligible basis for the allocation of Housing 
Credits. 


 


5. The underlying public purpose of the financing is to replace the current owner—and to rehabilitate 
the properties to a livable condition. Without both of these taking place, the Project Based Section 8 
will almost certainly be lost with the residents suffering the brunt of the negative consequences. 


 


6. HUD participated in the negotiations to find a buyer for the entire Global Ministries Foundation 
portfolio, located in eight states, with 4,500 units. The business terms of the sales agreement 
involved negotiations between GMF, Millennia, and HUD.  


 


7. There is no doubt that the Capital Trust Agency financing of these properties was massively 
irresponsible, and served no identifiable public purpose. Properties in need of massive repairs were 
sold to a questionable non-profit who took the properties off the tax rolls and did little, if any, 
renovations.  


 


8. This financing is the opposite—a new, responsible owner/manager is being brought into the picture 
and the properties will be substantially rehabilitated. The properties will also be brought back onto 
the property tax rolls—producing an estimated $1.83 million of revenue to the City over the next 10 
years. 


 


9. The development appears economically feasible. The bond issue is not dependent upon SAIL. 
 


10. The development amenities and resident programs meet or exceed minimum JHFA requirements, 
with the exception of a few minor waiver requests (see each development’s memorandum for 
detail). 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
 


 4 


11. The costs and fees associated with this development appear to be reasonable. However, the sales 
price of the developments will need to be verified by an independent appraisal. This will be a key 
factor in FHFC’s award of Housing Credits. 


 


12. The amount of rehabilitation appears to be adequate, but will be verified by an independent third-
party Physical Needs Assessment. 


 


13. The energy efficiency items meet JHFA standards, with one minor exception (see each 
development’s memorandum for detail). 


 


14. The site is controlled by the developer, has proper zoning, and has evidence of availability of water, 
sewer, roads and electricity. The transaction could close in the first quarter of 2018. 


 


15. The developer and development team have extensive experience in affordable housing in general, 
and rehabilitation of older properties in particular. 


 


16. As a Section 8 rent subsidized property, the market is not an issue other than the physical condition 
of the units. Additionally, the credit underwriter will order and evaluate an independent market 
analysis. 


 


17. Recommendations for Millennia Portfolio:  


 Permit Valencia Way, Oyster Pointe, Charlesfort Commons, and Estuary Way to proceed through 
the JHFA financing process.  


 


 Adopt Inducement Resolution prepared by bond counsel, which includes Preliminary 
Agreement. 
 


 All items subject to review and approval of credit underwriter and counsel, including but not 
limited to preconstruction analysis, appraisal, market study, loan terms and amount, guaranties, 
credit enhancement, loan and bond documents. 
 


 All items subject to conditions in this memorandum and each development’s individual 
memorandum. 








miles
km


10
10








THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 1 


Current Name Washington Heights 


New Name Charlesfort Commons 


Owner Entity* Charlesfort Commons FL TC, LP 


Developer/Location Millennia Housing Development Cleveland, OH 


Type Acquisition & Substantial Rehabilitation 


Street Address 4229 Moncrief Road W 


City Council District Reginald Brown 


Units 200 


Bedrooms 504 


Square Feet 179,848 


# of Buildings 23 


# of Stories 2 


Acres 14.61 


Bond Request $20,890,000 
 $104,450/unit 


Total Cost $34,755,018 


Cost Per Unit $173,775 


Land Cost $1,600,000  
$8,000/unit 


Acquisition of 
Building Cost 


$14,400,000  
$72,000/unit 


Hard Rehabilitation 
Cost 


$10,196,161 
$56.60/Sq. Ft. 
$50,981/unit 


General Contractor NEI 


Credit Enhancement Private Placement to R4 


Set-Aside Period 50 years 


Set-Aside Levels 100%<60% AMI 
 
Charlesfort Commons (Washington Heights) Analysis:  
 
Charlesfort Commons is an existing 200 unit garden apartment complex built in 1969. The development 
has been poorly maintained, and is in need of significant rehabilitation and modernization. 
 
The proposed rehabilitation will be “substantial” ($50,981/unit). A detailed description of the 
rehabilitation follows later in this analysis. 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 2 


A. Financing & Cost Analysis: 
 


1. The financing structure uses privately place tax exempt bonds—providing access to 4% Housing 
Credits. The bond purchaser and equity provider will be R4. 
 


2. The proposed acquisition cost is $16.0 million, or $80,000 per unit. The Credit Underwriter will 
determine if this is an appropriate cost, based upon an independent appraisal.  


 


3. The Applicant provided a letter of interest for Debt/Private Placement from R4. The commitment is 
for both the construction and period loan periods. The loan (bonds) would have a 17 year term, 40 
year amortization, and an interest rate of the 15 year MMD plus 225 basis points (currently 
estimated at 5.00%).  
 


4. The Applicant provided a Letter of Interest for Housing Credit syndication from R4. The price is 
$0.9378 per $1 of credits. 
  


5. The Applicant is not applying for SAIL, and the deal works without any additional FHFC or JHFA 
subordinate financing. 


 


6. Financing & Cost Issues: 


 The financing commitments are adequate for this stage of the process. 
 
B. Sources:  
 
Permanent Loan Period 


Source $ Per Unit % of Development 
Cost 


Tax Exempt Bonds $20,890,000 $104,450   60% 


Housing Credits $10,698,579 $  53,493   31% 


Equity-Partner 
Contribution 


$  0 $    0      0% 


Construction Period 
Income  


$  1,495,315 $    7,476      4% 


Deferred Developer 
Fee 


$  1,671,124 $    8,356      5% 


JHFA Loan $     0 $    0      0% 


TOTAL  $34,755,018 $173,775 100% 


 
 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 3 


C.  Development Information, Including Design and Amenities 
 


Unit Mix 
Phase I 


  


Bedroom/Baths Number Square Footage 


1/1 0 N.A. 


2/1   96 841 


3/1 104 953 


 
1 Charlesfort Commons is a proposed 200 unit rehabilitation family development, in 23 two-story 


garden apartment buildings, plus a community building, a laundry building, and a maintenance 
building. 
 


2 An independent Physical Needs Assessment is needed to determine if proposed $54,314/unit 
“substantial” rehabilitation is adequate.  


 


3 In addition to meeting all building code, Fair Housing Act, and Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirement, the following are also required amenities: 


 Air conditioning 


 Cable TV hook-up 


 Full sized appliances in all units 


 Exterior lighting for all buildings and parking areas 


 Window Treatment: blinds 
 
4. Unit amenities (in addition to those required) include: 


 Ceramic Tile Bathroom Floors 


 Microwave 


 Dishwasher 


 Garbage disposal 


 Steel entry door frames 


 Double compartment kitchen sink 
 
The Applicant has 21 of the required 25 points and requests a waiver. The other possible point-scoring 
items are either not-feasible (gated community), cost prohibitive (fire sprinklers in all units), or 
physically infeasible (washer-dryer hookups). 
 


5. Development amenities include: 


 30-year expected life roofing 


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Exercise room with appropriate equipment 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 4 


 Community Center 


 Playground/tot lot 


 Car care area 


 Childcare facility located within three miles of property 


 Public transportation located within one-half mile of property 


 Library /study room with minimum of 100 books and 5 magazine subscriptions 


 Outside Recreation area for older children: Basketball Court 
 


6. Mandatory Energy Conservation features: 


 Energy Star qualified refrigerator; 


 Energy Star qualified dishwasher;  


 Energy Star qualified washing machine, if provided by applicant; 


 Minimum SEER of 14 for unit air conditioners (excluding buildings with a  central chiller system); 


 Caulk, weather strips, seal hole, cracks, etc. for rehabilitation developments 


 Sealed and insulated heating and cooling system ducts for rehabilitation developments (waiver 


requested) 


 Low-VOC paint for all interior walls (50 grams per liter or less for flat paint; 150 grams per liter 


or less for non-flat paint); 


 Low-flow water fixtures in bathrooms--WaterSense labeled products or the following 


specifications: 


o Toilets:   1.6 gallons/flush or less 


o Faucets: 1.5 gallons/minute or less 


o Showerheads: 2.2 gallons/minute or less. 


 Programmable thermostat in each unit 
 


The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the feature dealing with sealed and insulated heating and 


cooling system ducts. The Applicant states: “We are able to meet each requirement other than the 


requirement to seal and insulate heating and cooling   systems ducts (highlighted below).  This 


requirement is financially infeasible due to the amount of extensive demolition to dry wall in order to 


access all of the duct work in each unit.”  


 
7. Other energy conservation features: 


 Energy Star exhaust fans in all bathrooms 


 Energy Star rating for all windows 


 Install daylight sensors, timers or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to buildings 


 FL Yards and Neighborhoods certification on all landscaping 


 Eco-Friendly Flooring - Carpet and Rug Institute Green Label Certified Carpet and Pad, Bamboo, 


Cork, Recycled, Content Tile, and/or Natural Linoleum 


 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 5 


8. Design, Amenity & Energy Efficiency Issues:  


 The development has physical features that are consistent with the needs of family housing. 


 Recommend granting waiver on duct-work 


 Recommend granting waiver on unit amenities 
 


D.  Public Purpose/ Resident Services 
  
1. The set-aside period is for 50 years. 
 
2. The income set-aside is 100% at 60% of area median income. 
 
3. The resident services/programs include (no optional services/programs selected): 


 Health Care Screening (M) 


 Resident Activities (M) 


 On Site Voter Registration (M) 


 Life Safety Training (O) 


 Health and Nutrition Classes (O) 


 Case Management/Residential Stabilization Services (O) 


 Homeownership Opportunity Program (M): Waiver requested 


 First-time homebuyer seminars (M) 


 Job Training (O) 
 
The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the Homeownership Opportunity Program, stating “Due to the 
nature of the Project Based Section 8 contracts and other compliance complications, we do not believe 
we could initiate this program successfully.” 
 
4.   Public Purpose Issues: None 


 The Applicant is providing services and programs for residents that exceed JHFA standards—and 
has agreed to provide four optional programs. 


 Recommend granting waiver from Homeownership Program, as this is large administrative 
burden without significant impact on the community. The optional programs being offered are 
much more relevant to improving the lives of the residents.  
 
 


E.  Ability to Proceed 
 
1. Site control is established by a contract for purchase and sale.  


 


2. The site is zoned RMD-D, Residential Medium Density, for which the development is an allowable 
use. 


 


3. As an existing facility, electricity, water, sewer and roads are available. 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 6 


4. All other information was submitted as required, and no information submitted indicated there 
would be issues at this stage that would prevent the project from moving forward. 


 


5. The applicant’s schedule calls for a bond closing in late 2017. This is questionable, given that the 
credit underwriter has not begun work, third party reports have not been ordered, and FHFC will 
have to fully review for Housing Credit allocation. An first-quarter closing in 2018 seems more likely. 


 


6.  Ability to Proceed Issues:  None. 
 


 


F.  Experience of Development Team: 
 
The developer and the members of the team that were identified have extensive experience with 
affordable housing, bond transactions, rehabilitation of existing developments, and housing credits. 
Some members of the team have not yet been named. The credit underwriter will review all team 
members. 
 
Experience of Development Team Issues: None.  
 
 
G.  Other requirements: Expense and Indemnity Agreement 


 The required Expense and Indemnity Agreement was executed. 
 
 
H.  Site Location and Market 
 
1. This development is located at 4229 Moncrief Road West, Northside, on Moncrief Road, west of I-


95, just south of Golfair Boulevard.  
 
2. The development has Section 8 rent subsidies; therefore the only impediment to marketing the 


units is their condition. 
 


3. An independent market study will be evaluated by the credit underwriter. 
 


4. Site Location and Market Issues: None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 7 


 
I.     Rehabilitation 
 
1. Possibly the most important analysis for the JHFA relates to adequacy of the rehabilitation. 


 


2. As part of credit underwriting, a Physical Needs Assessment will be ordered from an independent 


third party and will be compared to the proposed rehabilitation. This will insure that required 


repairs are part of the rehabilitation plan and budget. As is the case with all major rehabilitations, 


there will be a cost constraint on the repairs. 


 


3. A detailed rehabilitation work plan and resident location plan are included in the application. 


 


4. Given the importance of this issue, I have copied the Design Narrative from the application for the 


Board’s review: 


 
Design Narrative: 
The property now known as Washington Heights Apartments (to be renamed Charlesfort Commons) is located at 
4229 Moncrief Road W. in Jacksonville, Florida. The property is an existing apartment community originally 
constructed in 1969 and provides for two hundred (200) units of affordable family housing.  The property is 
approximately 14.61 acres and is comprised of several surface parking lots, a community building, a maintenance 
building, a laundry building, and (23) two-story apartment buildings. The surrounding area is primarily residential 
and is made up of low income families, with roughly 62% of the local population making under $25,000 annually. 
The neighborhood hosts a variety of churches and parks within close proximity to the property. 


 
The apartment buildings consists of 200 two bedroom and three bedroom units. Per accessibility requirements, 
ten (10) units will be converted to ‘Type-A’ ADA accessible. The remainder of the units are Type-B Units. Once 
complete, the complex will consist of a total of (96) – two bedroom / one bath, (104) – three bedroom / two bath 
and (10) ADA – two or three bedroom / one bath apartments. Four hearing/visually impaired units are also 
provided. There are no non-rental units in this project. 
 
 
Rehab Characteristics: 
The proposed project for Charlesfort Commons addresses the rehabilitation and construction of the property 
throughout. Each of the two-story, masonry-clad building will be renovated and improved for new windows and 
doors, new roofing and new entry porches and stairs, new exterior trim, landscaping and site amenity work. New 
covered entry stair/porch/balcony configurations will be provided to create a variety of building looks throughout 
the complex. A renovated and expanded community building, gardens, exterior lighting, signage, site 
furniture/landscaping, walking paths, dumpster pads/fences, an older children recreational area and playgrounds 
throughout the site will be included in the exterior improvements. 
 
With regards to the interior of the property, some of the most significant upgrades are to the kitchens and 
bathrooms.  These improvements may include new cabinetry, laminated countertops, bath and showers, sinks, 
stoves, and fixtures (all appliances/fixtures will be Energy Star Rated). 
      
The proposed renovation plan will dramatically improve both the aesthetics and functionality of the property and 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 8 


therefore the residents’ quality of life as well.  The primary motivation for this proposed plan is not only to provide 
the necessary near-term capital improvements, but also extend the economical and physical life of Charlesfort 
Commons into the foreseeable future. 
 
Exterior Improvements: 
Many of the materials used during the original construction have exceeded their useful life.  In some cases, the 
property lacks certain features as a whole.  
 


 Some of the largest external improvements that need to be made include: 


 Window and door replacement 


 Exterior lighting for buildings and parking areas  


 30 year expected life of roofing on all buildings  


 New entry porches and stairs 


 Walking paths and gardens 


 Landscaping and site amenity enhancement (fencing, signage, site furniture, etc.) 
 
Unit-Based Improvements: 
The proposed rehabilitation plan will also replace and/or revamp various features within many of the units at 
Charlesfort Commons.  Some of the most significant interior renovations will include complete unit upgrades with 
new furnaces and central A/C, new cabinets and countertops, new EnergyStar appliances, plumbing fixtures, 
lighting and finishes. These improvements will help to save on energy bills while providing better functionality and 
aesthetics.  
 
 Other improvements to the units will include:  


 Ceramic tile bathroom floors 


 Microwave oven 


 Dishwasher inside each unit 


 Garbage disposals inside each unit 


 Steel entry door frames  


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Double compartment kitchen sink  
 
Common Area Improvements: 
Much of the effort for external and internal rehabilitation is geared towards fostering a sense of community.  The 
project plan for Charlesfort Commons offers much-needed amenities to a resident profile where accessibility to 
similar benefits can often be too expensive.  
 
Some of the amenities included: 


 An expanded and renovated community building 


 New recreation area 


 An exercise room with appropriate equipment 


 Playground/tot lot 


 Car care area 


 Library study room with computer lab 
 
The renovated and expanded community will include a new fitness center, a new business center, a laundry room, 
a large community room and kitchen, offices, and new bathrooms.  The existing laundry and maintenance 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
CHARLESFORT COMMONS ANALYSIS 
 


 9 


buildings will be renovated and various new picnic pavilions for outdoor recreation will be constructed.  
Furthermore, the surrounding area has a child care facility within three miles and means of public transportation 
within a half mile.  The proposed on-site amenities, as well as the nearby services help to build an ideal climate for 
our residents. 
 
Energy Conservation: 
Energy efficiency, using recycled-content materials, and reducing waste are standards of Millennia’s approach to 
management and construction.  Selections made and described in the scopes of work follow this rule as well as 
take into consideration the needs of our residents.  Some examples of our energy conservation features at 
Charlesfort Commons include, energy star qualified refrigerators and dishwashers, low-flow water fixtures in 
bathrooms, and programmable thermostats in each unit.  Other typical improvements to apartment homes at 
Charlesfort Commons include: 
 


 Energy star exhaust fans in bathrooms 


 Energy star rating for all windows  


 Daylight sensors, timers, or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to the buildings  


 FL yards and neighborhoods certifications on all landscaping  


 Eco friendly flooring- green label certified  
 


5. Rehabilitation Issues: The proposed rehabilitation appears adequate, but will need to be evaluated 


in credit underwriting by an independent third-party Physical Needs Assessment. The PNA may 


require additional repairs to be made. 


 
 


 








THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 1 


Current Name Moncrief Village 


New Name Estuary Estates 


Owner Entity* Estuary Estates FL TC, LP 


Developer/Location Millennia Housing Development Cleveland, OH 


Type Acquisition & Substantial Rehabilitation 


Street Address 1650 Moncrief Village North 


City Council District Katrina Brown 


Units 94 


Bedrooms 178 


Square Feet 53,720 


# of Buildings 26 


# of Stories 1 & 2 


Acres 7.12 


Bond Request $9,190,000  
$97,766/unit 


Total Cost $14,327,577 


Cost Per Unit $152,421 


Land Cost $600,000  
$6,383/unit 


Acquisition of Building 
Cost 


$5,400,000  
$57,447/unit 


Hard Rehabilitation 
Cost 


$4,186,400 
$77.93/Sq. Ft.  
$44,536/unit 


General Contractor NEI 


Credit Enhancement Private Placement to R4 


Set-Aside Period 50 years 


Set-Aside Levels 100%<60% AMI 
 
Estuary Estates (Moncrief Village) Analysis:  
 
Estuary Estates is an existing 94 unit garden apartment complex built in 1957. The development has 
been poorly maintained, and is in need of significant rehabilitation and modernization. 
 
The proposed rehabilitation will be “substantial” ($44,536/unit). A detailed description of the 
rehabilitation follows later in this analysis. 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 2 


A. Financing & Cost Analysis: 
 


1. The financing structure uses privately place tax exempt bonds—providing access to 4% Housing 
Credits. The bond purchaser and equity provider will be R4. 
 


2. The proposed acquisition cost is $6.0 million, or $63,830 per unit. The Credit Underwriter will 
determine if this is an appropriate cost, based upon an independent appraisal.  


 


3. The Applicant provided a letter of interest for Debt/Private Placement from R4. The commitment is 
for both the construction and period loan periods. The loan (bonds) would have a 17 year term, 40 
year amortization, and an interest rate of the 15 year MMD plus 225 basis points (currently 
estimated at 5.00%).  
 


4. The Applicant provided a Letter of Interest for Housing Credit syndication from R4. The price is 
$0.9378 per $1 of credits. 
  


5. The Applicant is not applying for SAIL, and the deal works without any additional FHFC or JHFA 
subordinate financing. 


 


6. Financing & Cost Issues: 


 The financing commitments are adequate for this stage of the process. 
 
B. Sources:  
 
Permanent Loan Period 


Source $ Per Unit % of Development 
Cost 


Tax Exempt Bonds $  9,190,000 $  97,766   64% 


Housing Credits $  4,242,648 $  45,135   30% 


Equity-Partner 
Contribution 


$                  0 $    0      0% 


Construction Period 
Income  


$     609,118 $    6,480      4% 


Deferred Developer 
Fee 


$     285,811 $    3,040      2% 


JHFA Loan $     0 $    0      0% 


TOTAL  $14,327,577 $152,421 100% 


 
 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 3 


C.  Development Information, Including Design and Amenities 
 


Unit Mix 
Phase I 


  


Bedroom/Baths Number Square Footage 


1/1 10 500 


2/1 84 580 


3/1 0 N.A. 


 
1 Estuary Estates is a proposed 94 unit rehabilitation family development, in 26 one and two-story 


garden apartment buildings. A new community building will be added. 
 


2 An independent Physical Needs Assessment is needed to determine if proposed $44,536/unit 
“substantial” rehabilitation is adequate.  


 


3 In addition to meeting all building code, Fair Housing Act, and Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirement, the following are also required amenities: 


 Air conditioning 


 Cable TV hook-up 


 Full sized appliances in all units 


 Exterior lighting for all buildings and parking areas 


 Window Treatment: blinds 
 
4. Unit amenities (in addition to those required) include: 


 Ceramic Tile Bathroom Floors 


 Microwave 


 Dishwasher 


 Garbage disposal 


 Steel entry door frames 


 Double compartment kitchen sink 
 


The Applicant has 21 of the required 25 points and requests a waiver. The other possible point-scoring 
items are either not-feasible (gated community), cost prohibitive (fire sprinklers in all units), or 
physically infeasible (washer-dryer hookups). 
 


5. Development amenities include: 


 30-year expected life roofing 


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Exercise room with appropriate equipment 


 Community Center 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 4 


 Playground/tot lot 


 Car care area 


 Childcare facility located within three miles of property 


 Public transportation located within one-half mile of property 


 Library /study room with minimum of 100 books and 5 magazine subscriptions 


 Outside Recreation area for older children: Basketball Court 
 


6. Mandatory Energy Conservation features: 


 Energy Star qualified refrigerator; 


 Energy Star qualified dishwasher;  


 Energy Star qualified washing machine, if provided by applicant; 


 Minimum SEER of 14 for unit air conditioners (excluding buildings with a  central chiller system); 


 Caulk, weather strips, seal hole, cracks, etc. for rehabilitation developments 


 Sealed and insulated heating and cooling system ducts for rehabilitation developments (waiver 


requested) 


 Low-VOC paint for all interior walls (50 grams per liter or less for flat paint; 150 grams per liter 


or less for non-flat paint); 


 Low-flow water fixtures in bathrooms--WaterSense labeled products or the following 


specifications: 


o Toilets:   1.6 gallons/flush or less 


o Faucets: 1.5 gallons/minute or less 


o Showerheads: 2.2 gallons/minute or less. 


 Programmable thermostat in each unit 
 


The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the feature dealing with sealed and insulated heating and 


cooling system ducts. The Applicant states: “We are able to meet each requirement other than the 


requirement to seal and insulate heating and cooling   systems ducts (highlighted below).  This 


requirement is financially infeasible due to the amount of extensive demolition to dry wall in order to 


access all of the duct work in each unit.”  


 
7. Other energy conservation features: 


 Energy Star exhaust fans in all bathrooms 


 Energy Star rating for all windows 


 Install daylight sensors, timers or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to buildings 


 FL Yards and Neighborhoods certification on all landscaping 


 Eco-Friendly Flooring - Carpet and Rug Institute Green Label Certified Carpet and Pad, Bamboo, 


Cork, Recycled, Content Tile, and/or Natural Linoleum 


 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 5 


8. Design, Amenity & Energy Efficiency Issues:  


 The development has physical features that are consistent with the needs of family housing. 


 Recommend granting waiver on duct-work 


 Recommend granting waiver on unit amenities 
 


 
D.  Public Purpose/ Resident Services 
  
1. The set-aside period is for 50 years. 
 
2. The income set-aside is 100% at 60% of area median income. 
 
3. The resident services/programs include (no optional services/programs selected): 


 Health Care Screening (M) 


 Resident Activities (M) 


 On Site Voter Registration (M) 


 Life Safety Training (O) 


 Health and Nutrition Classes (O) 


 Homeownership Opportunity Program (M): Waiver requested 


 First-time homebuyer seminars (M): Waiver requested 


 Job Training (O) 
 
The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the Homeownership Opportunity Program, stating “Due to the 
nature of the Project Based Section 8 contracts and other compliance complications, we do not believe 
we could initiate this program successfully.” The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the First-time 
homebuyer seminars, stating “The Moncrief Village complex does not possess the capability to host 
seminars… due to lack of space we feel we could not accomplish this supportive service on an ongoing 
basis.” 
 
4.   Public Purpose Issues: None 


 The Applicant is providing services and programs for residents that exceed JHFA standards—and 
has agreed to provide three optional programs. 


 Recommend granting waiver from Homeownership Program, as this is large administrative 
burden without significant impact on the community and the First-time homebuyer seminars. 
The optional programs being offered are much more relevant to improving the lives of the 
residents.  
 


E.  Ability to Proceed 
 
1. Site control is established by a contract for purchase and sale.  


 


2. The site is zoned RMD-D, Residential Medium Density, for which the development is an allowable 
use. 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 6 


3. As an existing facility, electricity, water, sewer and roads are available. 
 


4. All other information was submitted as required, and no information submitted indicated there 
would be issues at this stage that would prevent the project from moving forward. 


 


5. The applicant’s schedule calls for a bond closing in late 2017. This is questionable, given that the 
credit underwriter has not begun work, third party reports have not been ordered, and FHFC will 
have to fully review for Housing Credit allocation. An first-quarter closing in 2018 seems more likely. 


 


6.  Ability to Proceed Issues:  None. 
 


F.  Experience of Development Team: 
 
The developer and the members of the team that were identified have extensive experience with 
affordable housing, bond transactions, rehabilitation of existing developments, and housing credits. 
Some members of the team have not yet been named. The credit underwriter will review all team 
members. 
 
Experience of Development Team Issues: None.  
 
 
G.  Other requirements: Expense and Indemnity Agreement 


 The required Expense and Indemnity Agreement was executed. 
 
 
H.  Site Location and Market 
 
1. This development is located at 1650 Moncrief Village North, west of I-95, off Moncrief Road, north 


of 35th Street.  
 
2. The development has Section 8 rent subsidies; therefore the only impediment to marketing the 


units is their condition. 
 


3. An independent market study will be evaluated by the credit underwriter. 
 


4. Site Location and Market Issues: None. 
 
 
 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 7 


I.     Rehabilitation 
 
1. Possibly the most important analysis for the JHFA relates to adequacy of the rehabilitation. 


 


2. As part of credit underwriting, a Physical Needs Assessment will be ordered from an independent 


third party and will be compared to the proposed rehabilitation. This will insure that required 


repairs are part of the rehabilitation plan and budget. As is the case with all major rehabilitations, 


there will be a cost constraint on the repairs. 


 


3. A detailed rehabilitation work plan and resident location plan are included in the application. 


 


4. Given the importance of this issue, I have copied the Design Narrative from the application for the 


Board’s review: 


 
Design Narrative:  
The property now known as Moncrief Village Apartments (to be renamed Estuary Estates) is located at 1650 
Moncrief Village North in Jacksonville, Florida. The property is an existing apartment community originally 
constructed in 1957 and provides for ninety-four (94) units of affordable family housing.  The property is 
approximately 7.12 acres and is comprised of several surface parking lots and (26) one and two-story apartment 
buildings. The surrounding area is primarily residential and is made up of low income families, with roughly 62% of 
the local population making under $25,000 annually. The Moncrief Park neighborhood hosts a variety of churches 
and parks within close proximity to the property.  
 
The apartment buildings consist of 94 one bedroom, two bedroom and three bedroom units. Per accessibility 
requirements, (5) will be converted to ‘Type-A’ ADA accessible. The remainder of the units are Type-B Units. Once 
complete, the complex will consist of a total of (10) – one bedroom / one bath, (79) – two bedroom / one bath and 
(5) ADA – apartments. Eight hearing/visually impaired units are also provided.  
 
Rehab Characteristics: 
The proposed project for Estuary Estates addresses the rehabilitation and construction of the property throughout 
and has a strong emphasis on communal and shared amenities. Each of the two-story, stucco-clad apartment 
buildings will be renovated and improved for new windows and entries, new roofing, new exterior trim, and 
landscaping.  A new community building and an older children recreational area with playground and picnic 
pavilion will be included in the exterior improvements. 
 
With regards to the interior of the property, some of the most significant upgrades are to the kitchens and 
bathrooms.  These improvements may include new cabinetry, laminated countertops, bath and showers, sinks, 
stoves, and fixtures (all appliances/fixtures will be Energy Star Rated).   
 
The proposed renovation plan will dramatically improve both the aesthetics and functionality of the property and 
therefore the residents’ quality of life as well.  The primary motivation for this proposed plan is not only to provide 
the necessary near-term capital improvements, but also extend the economical and physical life of Estuary Estates 
into the foreseeable future. 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 8 


Exterior Improvements: 
Many of the materials used during the original construction have exceeded their useful life.  In some cases, the 
property lacks certain features as a whole.  
 
Some of the largest external improvements that need to be made include: 


 Window and door replacement 


 Dumpster enclosures 


 Exterior lighting for all buildings and parking areas  


 30 year expected life of roofing on all buildings  


 New entry features and exterior trim 


 Landscaping and site amenity enhancement (fencing, lighting, signage, site furniture, etc.) 
 
Unit-Based Improvements: 
The proposed rehabilitation plan will also replace and/or revamp various features within many of the units at 
Estuary Estates.  Some of the most significant interior renovations will include complete unit upgrades with new 
furnaces and central A/C, new cabinets and countertops, new EnergyStar appliances, plumbing fixtures, lighting 
and finishes. These improvements will help to save on energy bills while providing better functionality and 
aesthetics.  
 
 Other improvements to the units will include:  


 Ceramic tile bathroom floors 


 Microwave oven 


 Dishwasher inside each unit 


 Garbage disposals inside each unit 


 Steel entry door frames  


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Double compartment kitchen sink  
 
Common Area Improvements: 
Much of the effort for external and internal rehabilitation is geared towards fostering a sense of community.  The 
project plan for Estuary Estates offers much-needed amenities to a resident profile where accessibility to similar 
benefits can often be too expensive.  
 
Some of the new amenities included:  


 New community building 


 New recreation area 


 An exercise room with appropriate equipment 


 Playground/tot lot 


 Car care area 


 Library study room with computer lab 
 
The new community building will include a new fitness center, computer area, a laundry room, community room 
and kitchen, offices, and new bathrooms.  The recreational area will host a playground and picnic pavilion for the 
residential families.  Furthermore, the surrounding area has a child care facility within three miles and means of 
public transportation within a half mile.  The proposed on-site amenities, as well as the nearby services help to 
build an ideal climate for our residents.  
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
ESTUARY ESTATES ANALYSIS 
 


 9 


Energy Conservation: 
Energy efficiency, using recycled-content materials, and reducing waste are standards of Millennia’s approach to 
management and construction.  Selections made and described in the scopes of work follow this rule as well as 
take into consideration the needs of our residents.  Some examples of our energy conservation features at Estuary 
Estates include, energy star qualified refrigerators and dishwashers, low-flow water fixtures in bathrooms, and 
programmable thermostats in each unit. Other typical improvements to apartment homes at Estuary Estates 
include: 


 Energy star exhaust fans in bathrooms 


 Energy star rating for all windows  


 Daylight sensors, timers, or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to the buildings  


 FL yards and neighborhoods certifications on all landscaping  


 Eco friendly flooring- green label certified  
 


5. Rehabilitation Issues: The proposed rehabilitation appears adequate, but will need to be evaluated 


in credit underwriting by an independent third-party Physical Needs Assessment. The PNA may 


require additional repairs to be made. 


 
 








THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 1 


Current Name Southside Apartments 


New Name Oyster Pointe 


Owner Entity* Oyster Pointe FL TC, LP 


Developer/Location Millennia Housing Development Cleveland, OH 


Type Acquisition & Substantial Rehabilitation 


Street Address 2414 Westmont Street 


City Council District Lori Boyer 


Units 74 


Bedrooms 148 


Square Feet 58,238 


# of Buildings 12 


# of Stories 2 


Acres 2.84 


Bond Request $7,160,000 
$96,757/unit 


Total Cost $12,440,322 


Cost Per Unit 168,112 


Land Cost $470,000 
$6,351/unit 


Acquisition of Building 
Cost 


$4,230,000  
$57,162/unit 


Hard Rehabilitation 
Cost 


$4,118,000  
$70.71/Sq. Ft.   
$55,649/unit 


General Contractor NEI 


Credit Enhancement Private Placement to R4 


Set-Aside Period 50 years 


Set-Aside Levels 100%<60% AMI 
 
Oyster Pointe (Southside Apartments) Analysis:  
 
Oyster Pointe is an existing 74 unit garden apartment complex built in 1957. The development has been 
poorly maintained, and is in need of significant rehabilitation and modernization. 
 
The proposed rehabilitation will be “substantial” ($57,162/unit). A detailed description of the 
rehabilitation follows later in this analysis. 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 2 


A. Financing & Cost Analysis: 
 


1. The financing structure uses privately place tax exempt bonds—providing access to 4% Housing 
Credits. The bond purchaser and equity provider will be R4. 
 


2. The proposed acquisition cost is $4.7 million, or $63,514 per unit. The Credit Underwriter will 
determine if this is an appropriate cost, based upon an independent appraisal.  


 


3. The Applicant provided a letter of interest for Debt/Private Placement from R4. The commitment is 
for both the construction and period loan periods. The loan (bonds) would have a 17 year term, 40 
year amortization, and an interest rate of the 15 year MMD plus 225 basis points (currently 
estimated at 5.00%).  
 


4. The Applicant provided a Letter of Interest for Housing Credit syndication from R4. The price is 
$0.9378 per $1 of credits. 
  


5. The Applicant is not applying for SAIL, and the deal works without any additional FHFC or JHFA 
subordinate financing. 


 


6. Financing & Cost Issues: 


 The financing commitments are adequate for this stage of the process. 
 
B. Sources:  
 
Permanent Loan Period 


Source $ Per Unit % of Development 
Cost 


Tax Exempt Bonds $  7,160,000 $  96,757   58% 


Housing Credits $  3,906,029 $  52,784   31% 


Equity-Partner 
Contribution 


$     450,000 $    6,081      4% 


Construction Period 
Income  


$     488,354 $    6,599      4% 


Deferred Developer 
Fee 


$     435,939 $    5,891      4% 


JHFA Loan $     0 $    0      0% 


TOTAL  $12,440,322 $168,112 100% 


 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 3 


C.  Development Information, Including Design and Amenities 
 


Unit Mix 
Phase I 


  


Bedroom/Baths Number Square Footage 


1/1 0 N.A. 


2/1 74 787 


3/1 0 N.A. 


 
1 Oyster Pointe is a proposed 74 unit rehabilitation family development, in 12 two-story garden 


apartment buildings, plus a community building, a laundry building, and a maintenance building. 
 


2 An independent Physical Needs Assessment is needed to determine if proposed $55,649/unit 
“substantial” rehabilitation is adequate.  


 


3 In addition to meeting all building code, Fair Housing Act, and Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirement, the following are also required amenities: 


 Air conditioning 


 Cable TV hook-up 


 Full sized appliances in all units 


 Exterior lighting for all buildings and parking areas 


 Window Treatment: blinds 
 
4. Unit amenities (in addition to those required) include: 


 Ceramic Tile Bathroom Floors 


 Microwave 


 Dishwasher 


 Garbage disposal 


 Steel entry door frames 


 Double compartment kitchen sink 
The Applicant has 21 of the required 25 points and requests a waiver. The other possible point-scoring 
items are either not-feasible (gated community), cost prohibitive (fire sprinklers in all units), or 
physically infeasible (washer-dryer hookups). 
 
5. Development amenities include: 


 30-year expected life roofing 


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Exercise room with appropriate equipment 


 Community Center 


 Playground/tot lot 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 4 


 Car care area 


 Childcare facility located within three miles of property 


 Public transportation located within one-half mile of property 


 Library /study room with minimum of 100 books and 5 magazine subscriptions 


 Outside Recreation area for older children: Basketball Court 
 


6. Mandatory Energy Conservation features: 


 Energy Star qualified refrigerator; 


 Energy Star qualified dishwasher;  


 Energy Star qualified washing machine, if provided by applicant; 


 Minimum SEER of 14 for unit air conditioners (excluding buildings with a  central chiller system); 


 Caulk, weather strips, seal hole, cracks, etc. for rehabilitation developments 


 Sealed and insulated heating and cooling system ducts for rehabilitation developments (waiver 


requested) 


 Low-VOC paint for all interior walls (50 grams per liter or less for flat paint; 150 grams per liter 


or less for non-flat paint); 


 Low-flow water fixtures in bathrooms--WaterSense labeled products or the following 


specifications: 


o Toilets:   1.6 gallons/flush or less 


o Faucets: 1.5 gallons/minute or less 


o Showerheads: 2.2 gallons/minute or less. 


 Programmable thermostat in each unit 
 


The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the feature dealing with sealed and insulated heating and 


cooling system ducts. The Applicant states: “We are able to meet each requirement other than the 


requirement to seal and insulate heating and cooling   systems ducts (highlighted below).  This 


requirement is financially infeasible due to the amount of extensive demolition to dry wall in order to 


access all of the duct work in each unit.”  


 
7. Other energy conservation features: 


 Energy Star exhaust fans in all bathrooms 


 Energy Star rating for all windows 


 Install daylight sensors, timers or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to buildings 


 FL Yards and Neighborhoods certification on all landscaping 


 Eco-Friendly Flooring - Carpet and Rug Institute Green Label Certified Carpet and Pad, Bamboo, 


Cork, Recycled, Content Tile, and/or Natural Linoleum 


 


 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 5 


8. Design, Amenity & Energy Efficiency Issues:  


 The development has physical features that are consistent with the needs of family housing. 


 Recommend granting waiver on duct-work 


 Recommend granting waiver on unit amenities 
 


D.  Public Purpose/ Resident Services 
  
1. The set-aside period is for 50 years. 
 
2. The income set-aside is 100% at 60% of area median income. 
 
3. The resident services/programs include (no optional services/programs selected): 


 Health Care Screening (M) 


 Resident Activities (M) 


 On Site Voter Registration (M) 


 Life Safety Training (O) 


 Health and Nutrition Classes (O) 


 Homeownership Opportunity Program (M): Waiver requested 


 First-time homebuyer seminars (M): Waiver requested 


 Job Training (O) 
 
The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the Homeownership Opportunity Program, stating “Due to the 
nature of the Project Based Section 8 contracts and other compliance complications, we do not believe 
we could initiate this program successfully.” The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the First-time 
homebuyer seminars, stating “The Moncrief Village complex does not possess the capability to host 
seminars… due to lack of space we feel we could not accomplish this supportive service on an ongoing 
basis.” 
 
4.   Public Purpose Issues: None 


 The Applicant is providing services and programs for residents that exceed JHFA standards—and 
has agreed to provide three optional programs. 


 Recommend granting waiver from Homeownership Program, as this is large administrative 
burden without significant impact on the community and the First-time homebuyer seminars. 
The optional programs being offered are much more relevant to improving the lives of the 
residents.  
 


E.  Ability to Proceed 
 
1. Site control is established by a contract for purchase and sale.  


 


2. The site is zoned RMD-D, Residential Medium Density, for which the development is an allowable 
use. 


 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 6 


3. As an existing facility, electricity, water, sewer and roads are available. 
 


4. All other information was submitted as required, and no information submitted indicated there 
would be issues at this stage that would prevent the project from moving forward. 


 


5. The applicant’s schedule calls for a bond closing in late 2017. This is questionable, given that the 
credit underwriter has not begun work, third party reports have not been ordered, and FHFC will 
have to fully review for Housing Credit allocation. An first-quarter closing in 2018 seems more likely. 


 


6.  Ability to Proceed Issues:  None. 
 


F.  Experience of Development Team: 
 
The developer and the members of the team that were identified have extensive experience with 
affordable housing, bond transactions, rehabilitation of existing developments, and housing credits. 
Some members of the team have not yet been named. The credit underwriter will review all team 
members. 
 
Experience of Development Team Issues: None.  
 
 
G.  Other requirements: Expense and Indemnity Agreement 


 The required Expense and Indemnity Agreement was executed. 
 
 
H.  Site Location and Market 
 
1. This development is located at 2414 Westmont Street, south of San Marco, immediately west of I-


95, south of San Diego Road, east of Phillips Highway. 
 
2. The development has Section 8 rent subsidies; therefore the only impediment to marketing the 


units is their condition. 
 


3. An independent market study will be evaluated by the credit underwriter. 
 


4. Site Location and Market Issues: None. 
 
 
 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 7 


I.     Rehabilitation 
 
1. Possibly the most important analysis for the JHFA relates to adequacy of the rehabilitation. 


 


2. As part of credit underwriting, a Physical Needs Assessment will be ordered from an independent 


third party and will be compared to the proposed rehabilitation. This will insure that required 


repairs are part of the rehabilitation plan and budget. As is the case with all major rehabilitations, 


there will be a cost constraint on the repairs. 


 


3. A detailed rehabilitation work plan and resident location plan are included in the application. 


 


4. Given the importance of this issue, I have copied the Design Narrative from the application for the 


Board’s review: 


 
Design Narrative:  
The property now known as Southside Apartments (to be renamed Oyster Pointe) is located at 2414 Westmont 
Street in Jacksonville, Florida. The property is an existing apartment community originally constructed in 1957 and 
provides for seventy-four (74) units of affordable family housing.  The property is approximately 2.84 acres and is 
comprised of several surface parking lots, a community building, a maintenance building, a laundry building, and 
(12) two-story apartment buildings.  
 
Once complete, the complex will consist of a total of (74) – two bedroom/one bath units. Two of these units will be 
hearing/visually impaired units. There are no non-rental units in this project 
 
Rehab Characteristics: 
The proposed project for Oyster Pointe addresses the rehabilitation and construction of the property throughout 
and has a strong emphasis on communal and shared amenities. Each of the two-story, stucco-clad apartment 
buildings will be renovated and improved for new windows and doors, new roofing and new entry features, new 
exterior trim, landscaping and site amenity work.  A new community building, fencing, lighting, signage, site 
furniture/landscaping, dumpster enclosures, an older children recreational area with playground and picnic 
pavilion will be included in the exterior improvements. Interior renovations will include complete unit interior 
upgrades with new furnaces and central A/C, new cabinets and countertops, new EnergyStar appliances, plumbing 
fixtures, lighting and finishes.  
 
The new community building will include a new fitness center, computer area, a laundry room, community room 
and kitchen, offices, and new bathrooms. The existing laundry and maintenance buildings will also be renovated 
and repurposed.  
   
The proposed renovation plan will dramatically improve both the aesthetics and functionality of the property and 
therefore the residents’ quality of life as well.  The primary motivation for this proposed plan is not only to provide 
the necessary near-term capital improvements, but also extend the economical and physical life of Oyster Pointe 
into the foreseeable future. 
 
Exterior Improvements: 
Many of the materials used during the original construction have exceeded their useful life.  In some cases, the 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 8 


property lacks certain features as a whole.  
 
Some of the largest external improvements that need to be made include: 


 Window and door replacement 


 Dumpster enclosures 


 Exterior lighting for all buildings and parking areas  


 30 year expected life of roofing on all buildings  


 New entry features and exterior trim 


 Landscaping and site amenity enhancement (fencing, lighting, signage, site furniture, etc.) 
 
Unit-Based Improvements: 
The proposed rehabilitation plan will also replace and/or revamp various features within many of the units at 
Oyster Pointe.  Some of the most significant interior renovations will include complete unit upgrades with new 
furnaces and central A/C, new cabinets and countertops, new EnergyStar appliances, plumbing fixtures, lighting 
and finishes. These improvements will help to save on energy bills while providing better functionality and 
aesthetics.  
 
 Other improvements to the units will include:  


 Ceramic tile bathroom floors 


 Microwave oven 


 Dishwasher inside each unit 


 Garbage disposals inside each unit 


 Steel entry door frames  


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Double compartment kitchen sink  
 
Common Area Improvements: 
Much of the effort for external and internal rehabilitation is geared towards fostering a sense of community.  The 
project plan for Oyster Pointe offers much-needed amenities to a resident profile where accessibility to similar 
benefits can often be too expensive.  
 
Some of the new amenities included: 


 New community building 


 New recreation area 


 An exercise room with appropriate equipment 


 Playground/tot lot 


 Car care area 


 Library study room with computer lab 
 
The repurposed community building will include a new fitness center, computer area, a laundry room, community 
room and kitchen, offices, and new bathrooms.  The recreational area will host a playground and picnic pavilion for 
the residential families.  Furthermore the surrounding area has a child care facility within three miles and means of 
public transportation within a half mile.  The proposed on-site amenities, as well as the nearby services help to 
build an ideal climate for our residents.  
 
Energy Conservation: 
Energy efficiency, using recycled-content materials, and reducing waste are standards of Millennia’s approach to 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
OYSTER POINTE ANALYSIS 
 


 9 


management and construction.  Selections made and described in the scopes of work follow this rule as well as 
take into consideration the needs of our residents.  Some examples of our energy conservation features at Oyster 
Pointe include, energy star qualified refrigerators and dishwashers, low-flow water fixtures in bathrooms, and 
programmable thermostats in each unit. Other improvements to the apartment homes at Oyster Pointe are: 
 


 Energy Star exhaust fans in bathrooms 


 Energy Star rating for all windows  


 Daylight sensors, timers, or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to the buildings  


 FL yards and neighborhoods certifications on all landscaping  


 Eco friendly flooring- green label certified  
 


5. Rehabilitation Issues: The proposed rehabilitation appears adequate, but will need to be evaluated 


in credit underwriting by an independent third-party Physical Needs Assessment. The PNA may 


require additional repairs to be made. 


 
 








THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 1 


Current Name Eureka Gardens I & II 


New Name Valencia Way 


Owner Entity* Valencia Way FL TC, LP 


Developer/Location Millennia Housing Development Cleveland, OH 


Type Acquisition & Substantial Rehabilitation 


Street Address 1214 Labelle Street 


City Council District Garrett Dennis 


Units 400 


Bedrooms 804 


Square Feet 337,932 


# of Buildings 38 


# of Stories 2 


Acres 23.75 


Bond Request $38,780,000 
$96,950/unit 


Total Cost $64,042,483 


Cost Per Unit $160,106 


Land Cost $2,600,000 
$6,500/unit 


Acquisition of 
Building Cost 


$23,400,000 
$58,500/unit 


Hard Rehabilitation 
Cost 


$21,725,475 
$64.29/Sq. Ft. 
$54,314/unit 


General Contractor NEI 


Credit Enhancement Private Placement to R4 


Set-Aside Period 50 years 


Set-Aside Levels 100%<60% AMI 
 
Valencia Way (Eureka Gardens I & II) Analysis:  
 
Valencia Way is an existing 400 unit garden apartment complex built in 1968. The development has 
been poorly maintained, and is in need of significant rehabilitation and modernization. 
 
The proposed rehabilitation will be “substantial” ($54,314/unit). A detailed description of the 
rehabilitation follows later in this analysis. 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 2 


A. Financing & Cost Analysis: 
 


1. The financing structure uses privately place tax exempt bonds—providing access to 4% Housing 
Credits. The bond purchaser and equity provider will be R4. 
 


2. The proposed acquisition cost is $26.0 million, or $65,000 per unit. The Credit Underwriter will 
determine if this is an appropriate cost, based upon an independent appraisal.  


 


3. The Applicant provided a letter of interest for Debt/Private Placement from R4. The commitment is 
for both the construction and period loan periods. The loan (bonds) would have a 17 year term, 40 
year amortization, and an interest rate of the 15 year MMD plus 225 basis points (currently 
estimated at 5.00%).  
 


4. The Applicant provided a Letter of Interest for Housing Credit syndication from R4. The price is 
$0.9378 per $1 of credits. 
  


5. The Applicant is not applying for SAIL, and the deal works without any additional FHFC or JHFA 
subordinate financing. 


 


6. Financing & Cost Issues: 


 The financing commitments are adequate for this stage of the process. 
 
B. Sources:  
 
Permanent Loan Period 


Source $ Per Unit % of Development 
Cost 


Tax Exempt Bonds $38,780,000 $  96,950   61% 


Housing Credits $20,058,866 $  50,147   31% 


Equity-Partner 
Contribution 


$  2,000,000 $    5,000      3% 


Construction Period 
Income  


$  1,970,246 $    4,926      3% 


Deferred Developer 
Fee 


$  1,233,371 $    3,083      2% 


JHFA Loan $     0 $    0      0% 


TOTAL  $64,042,483 $160,106 100% 


 
 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 3 


C.  Development Information, Including Design and Amenities 
 


Unit Mix 
Phase I 


  


Bedroom/Baths Number Square Footage 


1/1 100 675 


2/1 196 864 


3/1 104 972 


 
1 Valencia Way is a proposed 400 unit rehabilitation family development, in 38 two-story garden 


apartment buildings, plus a community building, a laundry building, and a maintenance building. 
 


2 An independent Physical Needs Assessment is needed to determine if proposed $54,314/unit 
“substantial” rehabilitation is adequate.  


 


3 In addition to meeting all building code, Fair Housing Act, and Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirement, the following are also required amenities: 


 Air conditioning 


 Cable TV hook-up 


 Full sized appliances in all units 


 Exterior lighting for all buildings and parking areas 


 Window Treatment: blinds 
 
4. Unit amenities (in addition to those required) include: 


 Ceramic Tile Bathroom Floors 


 Microwave 


 Dishwasher 


 Garbage disposal 


 Steel entry door frames 


 Double compartment kitchen sink 
 
The Applicant has 21 of the required 25 points and requests a waiver. The other possible point-scoring 
items are either not-feasible (gated community), cost prohibitive (fire sprinklers in all units), or 
physically infeasible (washer-dryer hookups). 
 


5. Development amenities include: 


 30-year expected life roofing 


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Exercise room with appropriate equipment 


 Community Center 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 4 


 Playground/tot lot 


 Car care area 


 Childcare facility located within three miles of property 


 Public transportation located within one-half mile of property 


 Library /study room with minimum of 100 books and 5 magazine subscriptions 


 Outside Recreation area for older children: Basketball Court 
 


6. Mandatory Energy Conservation features: 


 Energy Star qualified refrigerator; 


 Energy Star qualified dishwasher;  


 Energy Star qualified washing machine, if provided by applicant; 


 Minimum SEER of 14 for unit air conditioners (excluding buildings with a  central chiller system); 


 Caulk, weather strips, seal hole, cracks, etc. for rehabilitation developments 


 Sealed and insulated heating and cooling system ducts for rehabilitation developments (waiver 


requested) 


 Low-VOC paint for all interior walls (50 grams per liter or less for flat paint; 150 grams per liter 


or less for non-flat paint); 


 Low-flow water fixtures in bathrooms--WaterSense labeled products or the following 


specifications: 


o Toilets:   1.6 gallons/flush or less 


o Faucets: 1.5 gallons/minute or less 


o Showerheads: 2.2 gallons/minute or less. 


 Programmable thermostat in each unit 
 


The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the feature dealing with sealed and insulated heating and 


cooling system ducts. The Applicant states: “We are able to meet each requirement other than the 


requirement to seal and insulate heating and cooling   systems ducts (highlighted below).  This 


requirement is financially infeasible due to the amount of extensive demolition to dry wall in order to 


access all of the duct work in each unit.”  


 
7. Other energy conservation features: 


 Energy Star exhaust fans in all bathrooms 


 Energy Star rating for all windows 


 Install daylight sensors, timers or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to buildings 


 FL Yards and Neighborhoods certification on all landscaping 


 Eco-Friendly Flooring - Carpet and Rug Institute Green Label Certified Carpet and Pad, Bamboo, 


Cork, Recycled, Content Tile, and/or Natural Linoleum 


 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 5 


8. Design, Amenity & Energy Efficiency Issues:  


 The development has physical features that are consistent with the needs of family housing. 


 Recommend granting waiver on duct-work 


 Recommend granting waiver on unit amenities 
 


 
D.  Public Purpose/ Resident Services 
  
1. The set-aside period is for 50 years. 
 
2. The income set-aside is 100% at 60% of area median income. 
 
3. The resident services/programs include (no optional services/programs selected): 


 Health Care Screening (M) 


 Resident Activities (M) 


 On Site Voter Registration (M) 


 Life Safety Training (O) 


 Health and Nutrition Classes (O) 


 Case Management/Residential Stabilization Services (O) 


 Homeownership Opportunity Program (M): Waiver requested 


 First-time homebuyer seminars (M) 


 Job Training (O) 
 
The Applicant is requesting a waiver from the Homeownership Opportunity Program, stating “Due to the 
nature of the Project Based Section 8 contracts and other compliance complications, we do not believe 
we could initiate this program successfully.” 
 
4.   Public Purpose Issues: None 


 The Applicant is providing services and programs for residents that exceed JHFA standards—and 
has agreed to provide four optional programs. 


 Recommend granting waiver from Homeownership Program, as this is large administrative 
burden without significant impact on the community. The optional programs being offered are 
much more relevant to improving the lives of the residents.  
 


E.  Ability to Proceed 
 
1. Site control is established by a contract for purchase and sale.  


 


2. The site is zoned RMD-D, Residential Medium Density, for which the development is an allowable 
use. 


 


3. As an existing facility, electricity, water, sewer and roads are available. 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 6 


4. All other information was submitted as required, and no information submitted indicated there 
would be issues at this stage that would prevent the project from moving forward. 


 


5. The applicant’s schedule calls for a bond closing in late 2017. This is questionable, given that the 
credit underwriter has not begun work, third party reports have not been ordered, and FHFC will 
have to fully review for Housing Credit allocation. An first-quarter closing in 2018 seems more likely. 


 


6.  Ability to Proceed Issues:  None. 
 


 


F.  Experience of Development Team: 
 
The developer and the members of the team that were identified have extensive experience with 
affordable housing, bond transactions, rehabilitation of existing developments, and housing credits. 
Some members of the team have not yet been named. The credit underwriter will review all team 
members. 
 
Experience of Development Team Issues: None.  
 
 
G.  Other requirements: Expense and Indemnity Agreement 


 The required Expense and Indemnity Agreement was executed. 
 
 
H.  Site Location and Market 
 
1. This development is located at 1214 LaBelle Street, Westside,  south of I-10, south of Plymouth 


Street, west of Cassat Avenue.  
 
2. The development has Section 8 rent subsidies; therefore the only impediment to marketing the 


units is their condition. 
 


3. An independent market study will be evaluated by the credit underwriter. 
 


4. Site Location and Market Issues: None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 7 


I.     Rehabilitation 
 
1. Possibly the most important analysis for the JHFA relates to adequacy of the rehabilitation. 


 


2. As part of credit underwriting, a Physical Needs Assessment will be ordered from an independent 


third party and will be compared to the proposed rehabilitation. This will insure that required 


repairs are part of the rehabilitation plan and budget. As is the case with all major rehabilitations, 


there will be a cost constraint on the repairs. 


 


3. A detailed rehabilitation work plan and resident location plan are included in the application. 


 


4. Given the importance of this issue, I have copied the Design Narrative from the application for the 


Board’s review: 


 


Design Narrative: 
The property now known as Eureka Gardens (to be renamed Valencia Way) is located at 1214 Labelle St. in 
Jacksonville, Florida. The property is an existing apartment community originally constructed in 1968 and provides 
for four hundred (400) units of affordable family housing.  The property is approximately 23.6 acres and is 
comprised of several surface parking lots, a community building, a maintenance building, a laundry building, and 
(38) two-story apartment buildings. The most notable features of the area are nearby museums and parks—many 
under six miles away.  
 
The apartment buildings consist of 400 one bedroom, two bedroom and three bedroom units. Per accessibility 
requirements, (20) three bedroom units will be converted to ‘Type-A’ ADA accessible. The remainder of the units 
are Type-B Units. Once complete, the complex will consist of a total of (100) – one bedroom / one bath, (196) – 
two bedroom / one bath, (84) – three bedroom / two bath and (20) ADA – three bedroom / one bath apartments. 
Eight hearing impaired units are also provided.  There are no non-rental units in this project. 
 
Rehab Characteristics: 
The proposed project for Valencia Way addresses the rehabilitation and construction of the property throughout. 
Each of the two-story, masonry-clad and vinyl siding apartment buildings will be renovated and improved for new 
windows and doors, new roofing and entry ways, new exterior trim, landscaping and site amenity work. New 
covered entry stair/porch/balcony configurations will be provided to create a variety of building looks throughout 
the complex. A renovated and expanded community building, gardens, walking paths, an older children 
recreational area and playgrounds throughout the site will be included in the exterior improvements.  
 
With regards to the interior of the property, some of the most significant upgrades are to the kitchens and 
bathrooms.  These improvements may include new cabinetry, laminated countertops, bath and showers, sinks, 
stoves, and fixtures (all appliances/fixtures will be Energy Star Rated).      
 
The community building will be expanded and renovated to include a variety of new rooms and appliances. The 
existing laundry and maintenance buildings will be renovated and various new picnic pavilions for outdoor 
recreation will be constructed.  
 
The proposed renovation plan will dramatically improve both the aesthetics and functionality of the property and 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 8 


therefore the residents’ quality of life as well.  The primary motivation for this proposed plan is not only to provide 
the necessary near-term capital improvements, but also extend the economical and physical life of Valencia Way 
into the foreseeable future. 
 
Exterior Improvements: 
Many of the materials used during the original construction have exceeded their useful life.  In some cases, the 
property lacks certain features as a whole.  
 
Some of the largest external improvements that need to be made include: 


 Window and door replacement 


 Exterior lighting for buildings and parking areas  


 30 year expected life of roofing on all buildings  


 New entry porches and stairs 


 Small trellis structures 


 Dumpster enclosures 


 Walking paths and gardens 


 Landscaping and site amenity enhancement (fencing, signage, site furniture, etc.) 
 
Unit-Based Improvements: 
The proposed rehabilitation plan will also replace and/or revamp various features within many of the units at 
Valencia Way.  Some of the most significant interior renovations will include complete unit upgrades with new 
furnaces and central A/C, new cabinets and countertops, new EnergyStar appliances, plumbing fixtures, lighting 
and finishes. These improvements will help to save on energy bills while providing better functionality and 
aesthetics.  
 
 Other improvements to the units will include:  


 Ceramic tile bathroom floors 


 Microwave oven 


 Dishwasher inside each unit 


 Garbage disposals inside each unit 


 Steel entry door frames  


 Termite prevention/detection system 


 Double compartment kitchen sink  
 
Common Area Improvements: 
Much of the effort for external and internal rehabilitation is geared towards fostering a sense of community.  The 
project plan for Valencia Way offers much-needed amenities to a resident profile where accessibility to similar 
benefits can often be too expensive.  
 
Some of the amenities included: 


 An expanded and renovated community building 


 New recreation area 


 Outdoor seating with trellis structure 


 An exercise room with appropriate equipment 


 Playground/tot lot 


 Car care area 


 Library study room with computer lab 







THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY  
VALENCIA WAY ANALYSIS 
 


 9 


 
The renovated and expanded community will include a new fitness center, a new business center, a laundry room, 
a large community room and kitchen, offices, and new bathrooms.  There will be outdoor seating with a trellis 
structure and a new patio as part of the exterior improvements.  The existing laundry and maintenance buildings 
will be renovated and various new picnic pavilions for outdoor recreation will be constructed.  Furthermore, the 
surrounding area has a child care facility within three miles and means of public transportation within a half mile.  
The proposed on-site amenities, as well as the nearby services help to build an ideal climate for our residents. 
 
Energy Conservation: 
Energy efficiency, using recycled-content materials, and reducing waste are standards of Millennia’s approach to 
management and construction.  Selections made and described in the scopes of work follow this rule as well as 
take into consideration the needs of our residents.  Some examples of our energy conservation features at 
Valencia Way include, energy star qualified refrigerators and dishwashers, low-flow water fixtures in bathrooms, 
and programmable thermostats in each unit.  Other typical improvements to apartment homes at Valencia Way 
include: 


 Energy Star exhaust fans in bathrooms 


 Energy Star rating for all windows  


 Daylight sensors, timers, or motion detectors on all outdoor lighting attached to the buildings  


 FL yards and neighborhoods certifications on all landscaping  


 Eco friendly flooring- green label certified  
 


5. Rehabilitation Issues: The proposed rehabilitation appears adequate, but will need to be evaluated 


in credit underwriting by an independent third-party Physical Needs Assessment. The PNA may 


require additional repairs to be made. 


 
 








Employer


Allied Universal I Heart Hair Retired


Alsco I Tech Retired


Angelwood Ingenuity Orthodontics Retired DOT


Arlington Apt LLC Inovalon Retired Veteran


B&B Exterminators J&J Seeking Employment


Baptist Jet Blue/JIA SMG


Baptist Health JFRD Smith, Hulsey & Busey


Baptist Health Joshua Christian School Special Council


Battery Depot JTA Starbucks


Brightway Ins JTA State Attorney's Office


Brooks Rehab JTA State Attorney's Office


C2C JTA Sushila Beauty Care


C2C Solutions Kay Jewlers The Clipper Club


Catering By Liz Lasik Vision Institute The Flying Iguana


Chase Bank LaVilla School of the Arts Uber/Door Step Delivery


Citi Bank Legends Sports Bar United Health Care


Citi Bank Liberty Center Vast Bridges


Citi Bank CS Lincoln Villa Senior Center Windsor Park Golf Club


Citi Cards Maid Brigade


City Hall Martin Gottlieb & Associates


Cosco Mayo Clinic


Court House Mayport Commissary


CSI Special Care MCCI Medical Group


Currently Seeking Merrill Lynch


Davidson Realty Midway Body Shop


Day Care MOSH


Debeski & Associates Murrell Law LLC


Dollar Tree Nixon Salon


Dry Bar Novitas Solutions


Duval County Schools Octapharma Plasma


Duval County Schools Omni Hotel


Duval Ford One Call Care MGMT


Einstein Bagel Personal Caregiver


Family Promise of Jacksonville Pita Pit


Floor & Décor Pretty Steps


Florida Blue Railroad


Florida Blue Retired


Florida Blue Retired


Florida Care Ins Group Retired


G2 Promo Source Retired


Global Credit Protection Retired


Granny Nanny Retired


Hair Cuttery Retired


Historic Mt. Zion Church Retired


Home Health Care Retired


Home Instead Health Care Retired








 


214 North Hogan Street, 3rd Floor      Jacksonville, FL 32202      Phone: 904.255-8200      Fax: 904.255-8209   www.coj.net 


 


 JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 


  


 


 


 
Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority Board of Directors Meeting 


August 17, 2017     
Noon  


214 North Hogan Street, 8
th


 Floor 


  
- AGENDA - 


              
Call Meeting to Order        Chair 
Approval of Minutes of June 21, 2017 Meeting    JHFA Board 
           
 I. Public Comments 
A. Public Comments       Public 


 
II. REPORTS 
A. “To-Do” List Earlier Meetings      Mark Hendrickson 
B. Staff and Financial Report      Laura Stagner  


 Financial Statement  
C.    Financial Advisor Memo      Mark Hendrickson  


                  
IV. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Board Members Declare Conflicts, if any    Board 
B.    Consider Actions Related to Local Government Area of   Mark Hendrickson 
        Opportunity Funding (NOFA, Application and Selection Criteria) 
C.    Consider Actions Related to Local Government Funding  Mark Hendrickson 
        In Conjunction with SAIL and 9% Housing Credits 
        (NOFA, Application and Selection Criteria) 
D.   Consider Changes to TEFRA Hearing Procedures   Bond-Collins 
E.   Consider Inducement Approvals and Other Actions   Mark Hendrickson 
       Related to Millennia Housing Development Portfolio 
F.   Consider Inclusion of Sadowski Education Effort Contribution  Mark Hendrickson 
       In FY 2017-2018 Budget 


 
V. NEW BUSINESS 


 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Update on Single Family Program     Mark Hendrickson 
B. Update on Existing Rental Properties     Mark Hendrickson 


 Recent JHFA Activities/Developments 


 Occupancy Report 
E. Update on 2017 Legislative Effort     Mark Hendrickson 
 
VII. ADJOURN JHFA MEETING      Chair 








OCCUPANCY LEVELS 


6-30-17 
 


1 


 


Active Rental Developments—Bond Financed by DCHFA or JHFA 
Development & 
Address 


Developer Original 
Bonds & 
Issue Date 


Units & 
Occupancy 


Bennett Creek 


3585 Salisbury Drive 32216 


Richman $21,600,000 
12-21-10 


264 
96% (+1%) 


Brookwood Forest Apartments 


1251 Fromage Way  32225 


CED $10,000,000 
2005 


168 
95% (-0%) 


Camri Green Apartments 


3820 Losco Road  32257 


Vestcor $9,200,000 
2003 


184 
97% (+1%) 


Caroline Oaks Vestcor $5,600,000 
4-22-15 


82 
98% (-2%) 


Cathedral Terrace Blue Sky $12,500,000 
1-21-16 


200 
98% (+2%) 


Christine Cove 


3730 Soutel Dr  32208 


Carlisle $6,000,000 
2006 


96 
98% (-0%) 


Hartwood (AKA Hampton Ridge) 


11501 Harts Road  32218 


Southport $5,840,000 
2006 


110 
95% (+2%) 


Lindsey Terrace Apartments 


6455 Argyle Forest Blvd. 32244 


Vestcor $12,645,000 
2001 


336 
97% (+3%)  


Mt. Carmel Gardens 


5846 Mt. Carmel Terrace 32216 


BREC $9,750,000 
8-19-16 


207 
Rolling Rehab 89% 


Timberwood Trace 


12250 Atlantic Blvd. 32225 


Southport $16,000,000 
2-1-17 


224 
92% 


Timuquana Park Apartments 


5615 Seaboard Ave.  32244 


Southport $4,300,000 
2004 


100 
100% (+0%) 


 


90 Month Occupancy Levels—Entire Portfolio Average Occupancy 


 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Portfolio Occupancy 







OCCUPANCY LEVELS 


6-30-17 
 


2 


 


Average Occupancy by Development 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


80


85


90


95


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55


Bennett Creek 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Brookwood 







OCCUPANCY LEVELS 


6-30-17 
 


3 


 


 


Average Occupancy by Development 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Camri Green 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13


Caroline Oaks 







OCCUPANCY LEVELS 


6-30-17 
 


4 


 


 


Average Occupancy by Development 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13


Cathedral Terrace 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Christine Cove 







OCCUPANCY LEVELS 


6-30-17 
 


5 


 


 


Average Occupancy by Development 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


60


65


70


75


80


85


90


95


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Hartwood 


80


82


84


86


88


90


92


94


96


98


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Lindsey Terrace 







OCCUPANCY LEVELS 


6-30-17 
 


6 


 


 


Average Occupancy by Development 


 


 


90


91


92


93


94


95


96


97


98


99


100


1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91


Timuquana 








1 


 


 


JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 


 


 


 


 


JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 


 


Board of Directors Meeting 


 


 


 
 


MINUTES 


OF 


REGULAR MEETING 


 
 


 


 June 21, 2017







2 


 


 


 


June 21, 2017: JHFA Board Meeting 


12:00 pm 


214 North Hogan Street, 8
th


   Floor 
 


 
BOARD MEETING:  
Present at the meeting were: 
 
BOARD MEMBERS  
Tripp Gulliford, Chair 
Kenneth Filip, Member 
Dee Bumbarger, Member  
Ruth Owen, Member   
Spencer Cummings, Member 
Jeffery Rosen, Member 
 
PROFESSIONAL STAFF:  
Susan Leigh, Community Concepts Group, Financial Advisor 
Priscilla Howard, Community Concepts Group, Financial Advisor  
Cameron Hill, RBC Capital Markets, Investment Banker  
Rhonda Bond Collins, Bryant Miller Olive, Bond Counsel  
Lawsikia Hodges, City of Jacksonville Office of General Counsel 
Emerson Lutzia, City of Jacksonville Office of General Counsel 
 
CITY STAFF:  
Laura Stagner  
Jane Bouda  
Colin Moore 
 
PUBLIC:  
Steve Moore, Vestcor 
Ryan Hoover, Vestcor 
Michelle Tappaini 
 
BOARD MEETING 
Chair Gulliford called the meeting to order at 12:05 pm 
 
Minutes 


Mr. Filip moved, with a second by Ms. Bumbarger, that the Board approve the minutes of the May 24, 
2017. The motion passed 6-0. 


 
Public Comments 


Mr. Hoover made a presentation on Mary Eaves Senior Village, Lofts at LaVilla and Lofts at LaVilla 
on Monroe. He presented renderings of each development and updated the board on the construction 
and lease up schedules.  Mr. Hoover thanked the Board for their financial commitment and support.  







3 


 


 


Chairman Gulliford asked Vestcor Development to provide the Board with a list of the types of jobs 
and employers of the persons renting their units just for the Board to have an idea of who is being 
served in the downtown developments. 
 
“To-Do” List  
Ms. Leigh presented the “to-do” list from previous meetings. There were no comments or additions to 
the list. 
  
Staff Report and Financial Report 
Ms. Stagner presented the financial and staff report.  Ms. Stagner also presented the 2017-2018 Budget.  
Ms. Stagner asked for the Board to approve the Budget as presented. Chairman Gulliford asked for 
clarification on the Board’s ability to make changes anytime during the fiscal year.  Ms. Stagner assured 
the Chair that there is a process for the Board to move among the categories at any time during the 
fiscal year. Ms. Hodges stated that since this was not an action item on the published agenda the Chair 
had to ask for comments from the audience. There were no comments. Ms. Owen moved, with a second 
by Mr. Cummings, that the Board approve the 2017-2018 Budget.  The motion passed 6-0.   
 
Board Member Conflicts 
There were no Board Member conflicts.   
 
2017 Bond Allocation  
Ms. Bond-Collins updated the Board on the 2017 Bond Allocation. She stated that 2017 Bond Allocation 
will transfer to the State Pool on June 30, unless reserved by JHFA.  Ms. Bond-Collins stated that TEFRA 
for this allocation was still valid, and asked the Board to approve requesting up to $50,000,000 (inclusive 
of $44,092,962 2017 unallocated bonds) from the Division of Bond Finance for 2017 single family private 
activity bond allocation. Ms. Bumbarger moved, with a second by Mr. Rosen, that the Board authorize 
bond counsel to file a single family bond allocation request with the Division of Bond Finance for up to 
$50,000,000. The motion passed 6-0. 
 
Local Government Contribution Loans 
Ms. Leigh informed the Board that The Millenia Companies will be submitting an application for the 
JHFA for bond financing of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the Global Ministries Jacksonville 
portfolio (including Eureka Gardens) with an estimated bond amount of $93.8 million. She stated that 
the submission has been delayed due to them needing to finalize the scope of work for each 
development. Ms. Leigh stated that a list of the properties is included in the Board package, but that the 
Market Street and Springfield developments should be removed from the list because the applicant had 
decided against using bond financing for those two properties. She stated that the developer plans to 
have the application submitted in time for the August JHFA Board Meeting. 
 
Ms. Bond-Collins explained that due to the length of time needed to publish the TEFRA notice for the 
proposed bond sale and related allocation request, the finance team would like permission to move 
forward with publishing the TEFRA notice to schedule the hearing immediately after the August Board 
meeting. She stated that if for any reason the application is not submitted and/or approved, the hearing 
will not be held and the TEFRA notice will be rescinded. 
 
Ms. Hodges recommended that the Board put their permission in the form of a motion. 
 
Mr. Filip moved, with a second by Mr. Cummings that the Board approve publication of the TEFRA 







4 


 


 


notice for the Millenia Companies Jacksonville Portfolio. The motion passed 6-0. 
 
Ms. Howard informed the Board that a NOFA for local government funds may need to be issued as soon 
as FHFC finalized their applications. 
 
Board Meeting – Chairman 
Chairman Gulliford asked Mr. Filip to serve as Chair for the remainder of the meeting 
 
Single Family  
Ms. Leigh reminded the Board of the various down payment assistance funding sources available to 
persons participating in the JHFA single family programs.     
 
Rental Financings:  
Ms. Leigh directed the Board to a chart in their Board package listing their accomplishment over the last 
three years for rental housing financings.    
 
Legislative Update 
Ms. Leigh updated the Board on the appropriation of the Housing Trust Fund Monies.  She explained 
that a portion of the monies came from funds already available to FHFC through their Guaranty Fund 
program.  Ms. Leigh stated that FHFC is in the process of having workshops to determine how their 
funds will be targeted.   
 
Adjournment 


On a motion by Ms. Owen and seconded by Mr. Rosen, the Board voted 6-0 to adjourn the 


meeting at 12:35 PM   

















S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1


8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8


15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15


22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


29 30 31 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29


       30    


S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S


1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 1 2 3 4 5


7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12


14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19


21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26


28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 31


  30 31


S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S


1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2


3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9


10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16


17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23


24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30


     31


JHFA Meeting Locations Meeting Rooms Located at 214 North Hogan Street, 8th Floor, Jacksonville,  Florida


8th Floor Staff and Team Conference Call 8:30 AM


FHFC Meeting Dates & Locations


February 3, 2017, Tampa Airport Marriott July 28, 2017, Miami, Hyatt Regency Coral Gables


March 24, 2017, Tallahassee City Hall September 8, 2017, Tallahassee City Hall


May 5, 2017 Tallahassee City Hall October 27, 20176, Tallahassee City Hall


June 16, 2017, Orlando Airport Hyatt Regency December 8, 2017, Jacksonville Hyatt Regency


NALHFA Annual Conference, April 26-29, 2017- Park Central Hotel, San Francisco


Florida ALHFA Conference  July 12-15, 2017- One Ocean Hotel, Atlantic Beach


Florida Housing Coalition Conference, September 10-13, 2017-  Rosen Centre Hotel, Orlando


SEPTEMBER DECEMBER


MAY JUNE


OCTOBER NOVEMBER


JULY AUGUST


JHFA Board Meeting Calendar 2017


JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL








JHFA Direction to Team 
From September 17, 2015, May 24 & June 21, 2017 Meetings 


 


Board Direction Staff Status 


September 17, 2015   


Board withdrew approval of earlier MOU for staffing services 
with City, and directed that new agreement be brought back 
to them for review and approval of document and staffing 
commitments. 


 Waiting for City. 


May 24, 2017   


Board asked Chairman Gulliford to contact FHFC to support 
Local Preference concept in Housing Credit scoring system and 
to explain the process used by JHFA 


FA  Done. Successful, as FHFC is retaining. 


June 21, 2017   


Board asked Vestcor to provide list of the types of jobs 
and employers of persons moving into Lofts at LaVilla 


FA Done, in packet. 


 





